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Chair & Chief Executive Report  
  
Welcome to our annual report and financial statements for 2019-20.  
  
Last summer, we set out our ambitions for the next three years in A Human Future: Strategic Plan 2019-22. The timing of publication aligned 
with the Enterprise and Skills Strategic Board’s Strategic Plan and those of the other skills and enterprise agencies, underlining our shared 
commitment to partnership working and a coordinated approach to helping Scotland thrive.  
  
Throughout 2019-20, we continued to help drive a strong, vibrant and resilient Scottish economy by supporting our nation’s people and 
businesses to reach their potential. This despite challenges, the greatest of which being the Covid-19 health crisis which emerged at the end 
of the financial year. Our response was to make rapid changes to our service offer and the way we work, to keep our workforce safe and to 
provide much needed support to our customers.  
  
Our Career Information, Advice, and Guidance (CIAG) empowers people to make their own learning and career decisions, based on the 
best available career intelligence, up-to-date knowledge of routes and pathways and an understanding of their own strengths and interests. 
In the 2018/19 academic year, we delivered 415,084 engagements to secondary school pupils, and in 2019/20, over 38,000 people accessed 
our universal CIAG service, receiving support through over 76,000 engagements. Over 30,000 pupils engaged in My World of Work Live! 
using experiential technology to increase access to work-related experiences  

  
We helped Scotland’s people increase their work-based and employability skills through a range of programmes. 19,121 funded learners were 
supported to obtain a work-related qualification through Individual Training Accounts (ITA) and 111 career changers received a bursary 
towards becoming teachers in STEM subjects.   
  
We continued to support people and businesses in redundancy situations. Through Partnership Action for Continuing Employment (PACE), 
we helped 11,189 people from 295 companies.  
  
Over the last twelve months, we have continued to work closely with industry to develop a demand-led, responsive work-based learning 
system. We delivered more than 29,000 apprenticeship starts in 2019-20 and further embedded Foundation Apprenticeships, with 12 
frameworks available in all 32 local authorities and in 325 participating schools.  
  
Our support for employers included engagement with 450 large companies on the benefits of increased work-based learning and help for 
171 small and medium enterprises through Skills for Growth. We also intensified partnership working with the other enterprise and skills 
agencies across several areas of work including support to account manage over 100 businesses looking to expand or locate in Scotland.  
  
Our digital offer continued to excel, complementing our face-to-face services and extending our reach – My World of Work recorded more 
than 2.6 million users in 2019-20, with more than 700,000 on apprenticeships.scot and over 43,000 on Our Skillsforce.   
  
An important development this year has been the establishment of a joint Skills Alignment Directorate with Scottish Funding Council (SFC), 
enabling us to more easily share resource, data and digital capability to help create a more effective and streamlined skills and learning system.  
  
Our work with industry included the publication of seven skills plans, including the South of Scotland Regional Skills Investment Plan. We 
also continued to work closely with the Scottish Apprenticeships Advisory Board which provides employer leadership and a valuable 
contribution to the development of apprenticeships in Scotland.  
  
None of our achievements would have been possible without the passion and commitment of our staff. Achieving Gold Standard Investors 
in People accreditation and upholding our status as Stonewall’s top LGBTQ+ employer in Scotland are excellent examples of external 
validation. Employee engagement continued to be high, with our annual staff survey achieving 91% participation and results showing high 
levels of staff satisfaction.   
  
By continuing to build on our strengths and achievements, we will continue to make a real difference to the people and businesses in Scotland. 
As we emerge from the pandemic, we will have an important contribution to help the country, a challenge we are ready to accept.   
 
 
 
Frank Mitchell, Chair  
  
Damien Yeates, Chief Executive   
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.myworldofwork.co.uk/
https://www.apprenticeships.scot/
http://www.ourskillsforce.co.uk/
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STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2020 
 
Introduction 
 
A non-departmental body of the Scottish Government, Skills Development Scotland (SDS) is the national skills agency. Our purpose is to 
drive a productive and inclusive economy by ensuring Scotland’s businesses and people are equipped with the skills they need to achieve 
their potential. We achieve this through multi-faceted service delivery, driven by extensive collaboration and partnership working and, within 
a context of universal entitlement to our support, targeted to help those who need it most. 
 
We are committed to collaborating with our enterprise and skills agency partners to help Scotland meet its ambition of ranking in the top 
quartile of OECD countries for productivity, equality, wellbeing and sustainability. This close collaboration has been a defining feature of 
the year, with significant energy and resource dedicated to progressing our work with our agency partners and the Strategic Board. Notably, 
this has been seen through the appointment of our joint Director for Skills Alignment with the Scottish Funding Council, who has joined 
the SDS Executive Board and progressed the implementation of the skills alignment model. Other areas of collaboration have included 
support for the establishment of South of Scotland Enterprise, and provision of cross-agency employer support with Scottish Enterprise 
and Highlands and Islands Enterprise. We engage extensively with other partners at national, regional and local level, flexing and shaping 
our delivery to meet local needs and priorities, while informed by the knowledge of effective practice from across the country and beyond.  
 
By increasing innovation, efficiency and productivity in our own organisation, we aim to model the change we want to see in others. For 
more information visit our website www.skillsdevelopmentscotland.co.uk. 
 
Performance Overview 
 
The Enterprise and Skills Strategic Board’s Strategic Plan, published in October 2018, called on the enterprise and skills agencies to 
collectively help Scotland move towards the top quartile of OECD countries for productivity, equality, sustainability and wellbeing. In 
response, we developed a new Strategic Plan for 2019-2022, aligning our strategic planning cycle with the other enterprise and skills agencies. 
The Plan includes four strategic goals to focus our activity towards effective achievement of our purpose and shared ambitions. They are 
that: 

• all people in Scotland have the skills, information and opportunities they need to succeed in the labour market; 
• Scotland’s businesses drive productivity and inclusive growth; 
• Scotland has a dynamic and responsive skills system; and 
• SDS leads by example and continuously improves to achieve excellence. 

 
This performance report reflects the first year of this delivery, and is structured according to these four strategic goals.  Our Operating Plan 
2019-20 set out in more detail what we intended to achieve during the financial year. This reflected our main responsibilities as articulated in 
the Letter of Guidance received from the Deputy First Minister and Cabinet Secretary for Education and Skills, dated 27 June 2019, and in 
alignment with the National Performance Framework.  Detail of how our work aligns to the National Performance Framework is available 
in the Assessing Performance and Impact section of our Strategic Plan.  
 
While the Covid-19 pandemic is expected to have significant impact on our performance in 2020-21, the timing of its emergence meant that 
it had limited impact on the performance presented in this report.  
 
  

http://www.skillsdevelopmentscotland.co.uk/
https://www.skillsdevelopmentscotland.co.uk/media/45753/a-human-future-strategic-plan-2019-2022.pdf
https://www.skillsdevelopmentscotland.co.uk/media/45837/letter-of-guidance-2019_20.pdf
https://www2.gov.scot/About/Performance/scotPerforms
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STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2020 (CONT’D) 
 
Enabling Scotland’s People 
 
We want all of Scotland’s people to have the opportunity to flourish in the labour market as productive contributors to the economy. Our 
first strategic goal articulates our ambition that: All people in Scotland have the skills, information and opportunities to succeed in 
the labour market. 
 
Each of the goals identified in our Strategic Plan 2019-22 has four distinct strategies for delivery. Headline progress and achievements from 
2019-20 against the strategies for goal one are listed below: 
 

Enable learners and workers to make informed learning 
and career choices 

 
 In the 2018/19 academic year, delivered 415,084 CIAG 

engagements to secondary school pupils (compared to 
427,724 engagements delivered in 2017/18 academic year; 

 Over 30,000 pupils engaged in My World of Work Live! 
using experiential technology to increase access to work-
related experiences; 

 In 2019/20, over 38,000 people accessed our universal 
CIAG service (compared to 42,053 in 2018/19) and 
received support through over 76,000 engagements; and 

 Supported Developing the Young Workforce to host 
‘Scotland’s Biggest Parents Evening’ to inform parents in 
the learning and career choices available to young people 
across Scotland. 
 

Empower people to achieve equitable learning and 
employment outcomes 

 
 Published CIAG Equality Action Plan 2019-21, outlining 

continued challenges for each identified equality group and 
the specific actions we will take to address them; 

 The participation gap between those who lived in the 20% 
most deprived areas and those in the 20% least deprived areas 
continued to narrow with a gap of 10.5 percentage points in 
2019 (compared to 12.9 pp in 2016, 11.5 pp in 2017 and 10.8 
pp in 2018); and 

 Published the 2019 update of our four-year Equality and 
Diversity Mainstreaming Report, reflecting progress made in 
the last two years and our commitment to achieving real and 
demonstrable change. 

Provide effective learning pathways into productive 
employment 

 
 Met Scottish Government targets for starts in Modern and 

Graduate Apprenticeships; 
 Work-based learning opportunities at SCQF Levels 4 and 

5 piloted in schools, offered to S3-S6 pupils in automotive, 
hospitality and construction; 

 12 Foundation apprenticeship frameworks available in all 
32 local authorities, with 325 participating schools; 

 76.6% of MA leavers achieved their apprenticeship (76% 
in 2018/19); and  

 Delivered Scottish Apprenticeship Week 2020, and the 
2019 Scottish Apprenticeship Awards, celebrating the 
benefits apprenticeships bring to businesses, individuals 
and the economy. 
 

Help create an increasingly productive and 
resilient workforce for Scotland 

 
 11,189 individuals from 295 companies provided with PACE 

information, incl. 2,215 receiving face-to-face CIAG support 
(In 2018/19 13,353 individuals from 304 companies were 
supported with 3,038 receiving face-to-face support) PACE 
is demand-driven by redundancies, so a drop in delivery is not 
considered negative; 

 398 redundant MAs offered SDS support to access alternative 
learning and/or employment, with 174 gaining employment 
with a different employer to continue their MA;  

 111 career changers received the STEM bursary towards 
becoming teachers in STEM subjects (target = 100); 

 19,121 ITA applications approved, which enabled individuals 
to achieve work-related qualifications (21,716 applications 
were approved in 2018/19); and 

 Launched partnership project with IBM, Abertay University, 
SaluteMyJob and Skillzminer to retrain Scottish Armed 
Forces veterans to help address the skills gap in cyber security 
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STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2020 (CONT’D) 
 
A summary of in-year delivery, including performance against core targets, is provided below. 

 
Targets for CIAG delivery are set to reflect the delivery of our service offer, some of which run by financial year and others by academic 
year.  Targets are set as a proportion of the annual cohort for each academic or operating year (as applicable).  As the eligible population 
changes in size each year, volume figures are not targeted and are included below for context only. 
 

Career Information, Advice and Guidance: School Offer  
(measured by Academic Year) 

2018-19 
target 

2018-19 
actual 

2017-18 
target 

2017-18 
actual 

No of P7 – S3 pupils engaged with n/a 149,272 n/a 145,813 

No. of S4-S6 pupils engaged with n/a 93,064 n/a 92,444 

% P7/S1 pupils receiving a group engagement 85% 95% 85% 95% 

% of S2/S3 pupils making subject choices receiving an individual engagement 85% 86% 75% 80% 

% targeted S4-S6 pupils receiving one-to-one coaching guidance 93% 96% 90% 96% 

 
The Annual Participation Measure (APM) is in the Scottish Government’s National Performance Framework as the measure of young 
people’s (aged 16-19) participation in Scotland. While SDS publishes this statistic, and contributes to its achievement, it is not solely a measure 
of SDS’ performance. 
 

 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 
Annual Participation Measure (Scotland) 91.6% 91.8% 91.1% 90.4% 87.6%3 

 
Unemployed 15-18 year olds4 who are not currently participating, and are actively seeking work, can receive CIAG support from SDS 
through our 'Next Steps' service. This support aims to improve the individual’s career management skills (CMS) and support them to 
transition into education, training or employment.  In 2019-20, overall youth unemployment was low meaning that this customer cohort, 
which is not static, were likely to be those who face greater challenges in developing their CMS and progressing into education or 
employment.  This year Next Steps supported 9,129 individuals, 68% of those progressed to learning, training or work compared to a target 
of 65%, and 58% of those who progressed sustained it for at least six months, close to our aspirational internal target of 60% for the year.  
This compares favourably with the performance of similar programmes across Europe5.  Further details of our Next Steps service are 
available in our annual Delivering Scotland’s Career Service report, with the 2019/20 report due later this year.  
  

 
1 Since 2018-19 the target for apprenticeships has included both Modern and Graduate Apprenticeship starts. It does not include Foundation Apprenticeship 
(FA) starts.  
2 FA target is based on number of opportunities made available, rather than numbers taken up. 
3 The Participation Measure published in 2015 was classified as experimental statistics. The methodology for calculating the Annual Participation Measure 
was developed in 2016, and differed to the 2015 methodology. The outturn for 2015 is therefore not directly comparable with later data. 
4 This service is available up to the age of 26 for care experienced customers. 
5 Data collection for monitoring of Youth Guarantee schemes: 2017, European Commission (December 2018) 

Work-based Learning  2019-20 
target 

2019-20 
actual 

18-19 
target 

18-19 
actual 

17-18 
target 

17-18 
actual 

16-17 
target 

16-17 
actual 

15-16 
target 

15-16 
actual 

Apprenticeship starts 29,000 29,035 28,0001 28,191  

Modern Apprenticeship Starts - 27,875 - 27,270 27,000 27,145 26,000 26,262 25,500 25,818 

Graduate Apprenticeship Starts - 1,160 - 921 - 278  

FA opportunities taken up in 
schools 

n/a2 3,445 - 1,532 - 1,245 - 351  

Employability Fund starts <9,000 8,750 9,000 9,398 9,000 9,073 11,650 11,717 17,150 17,321 

% MA starts from 
individuals with declared care 

  

1.7% 1.7% 1.8% 1.5% > previous 
year 1.6% > previous 

year 1.3% - 0.9% 

% MA starts from 
individuals with declared 

disability  
13.0% 15.4% 11.0% 14.1% 6.0% 11.3% 4.0% 8.6% 2.0% 1.6% 

https://www.skillsdevelopmentscotland.co.uk/media/46449/delivering-scotlands-careers-service-2020.pdf
https://ec.europa.eu/social/BlobServlet?docId=20656&langId=en


THE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT SCOTLAND CO. LIMITED                               Company Registration Number: SC202659 
 

    6 

STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2020 (CONT’D) 
 
Mobilising Scotland’s Businesses 
 
Our role is to support and encourage Scotland’s businesses to grow and prosper through investment in skills. Our second strategic goal 
reflects that, through investment in skills, we work to ensure: Scotland’s businesses drive productivity and inclusive growth. 
 
Headline progress and achievements from 2019-20 against the four strategies for delivering goal two are listed below: 
 

Deliver an aligned and integrated service offer for employers 
 
 

 In collaboration with Scottish Enterprise (SE), Scottish 
Development International (SDI) and Highlands and Islands 
Enterprise (HIE), SDS has managed over 100 accounts for 
businesses either looking to locate or expand operations in 
Scotland; 

 Launched the new website, FindBusinessSupport.gov.scot to 
help businesses access the support they need from Scotland’s 
enterprise and skills agencies; and 

 SDS adopted CRM2, a shared data resource with SE, Business 
Gateway, HIE and South of Scotland Enterprise. This has 
improved SDS customer service by driving consistent, clear and 
co-ordinated engagement with customers and improved 
insights and decision making on products and services.      
 

Inspire and enable employers to take a strategic 
approach to workforce planning 

 
 450 large companies were relationship managed in 2019-

20 helping them realise the benefits of increased work-
based learning within their organisations; 

 171 small and medium enterprises were supported 
through Skills for Growth, up from 149 in the previous 
year;  

 Over 43,000 users accessed our employer support site, 
Our Skillsforce, an increase from around 36,000 in 2018-
19; and 

 Early employer responses to Covid-19, including 
redundancies, furloughing staff and suspending 
apprenticeship programmes, will impact ongoing 
deployment of this strategy. 

Promote the development of productive and innovative 
workplace practices 

 
 Six workstreams progressed to develop an integrated Business 

Model and Workplace innovation (BMWI) programme across 
agencies, with focus on diagnostic services and support 
products and services; 

 Cross-agency work progressed to develop appropriate BMWI 
pilots; and 

 As highlighted in our later section on risks and uncertainties, 
business awareness and adoption of high performance cultures 
and practices remains an ongoing concern. 
 

Drive understanding and adoption of fair work practices 
 
 

 Worked with Enable and Scottish Government to pilot a 
‘Supported employment MA’ to help employers and 
disabled young people to sustain employment; and 

 Invited members of the Scottish Apprenticeship Advisory 
Board (SAAB) to help determine how Fair Work First 
should apply to employers to understand how the Fair 
Work First standards might affect businesses. 
 

 
  

https://findbusinesssupport.gov.scot/
https://www.ourskillsforce.co.uk/
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STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2020 (CONT’D) 
 
Influencing the Learning and Skills System 
 
Our third strategic goal is that Scotland has a dynamic and responsive skills system. Our role in achieving this remains to drive 
effectiveness and efficiency in the Scottish learning and skills system so that it increasingly delivers the best outcomes for the economy.  
 
Headline progress and achievements from 2019-20 against the four strategies for delivering goal three are listed below: 
 

Strengthen industry ownership of the skills system: 
 
 

 Through SAAB, we facilitated employer leadership, 
engagement and contribution to the development of 
apprenticeships in Scotland; and 

 Through Scotland’s Apprentice Network, we supported 
current and former apprentices to promote work-based 
learning by delivering apprentice ambassadorial 'My Journey' 
talks. 

Build a high-quality evidence base using robust and 
comprehensive data 

 
 10 evidence base products delivered including: 

o a new data matrix tool for labour market information 
(LMI), enabling all partners to have the most up to 
date, interactive and accessible evidence for their 
areas; and 

o Regional Skills Assessments summary reports and 
infographics published to inform future investment in 
skills, built up from existing datasets and forecasts. 

 
Influence the prioritisation of resources in line with the 

evidence base 
 
 Core joint agency team (SDS and SFC) created following 

appointment of Director of Skills Alignment to drive core 
cross agency work including: 
o Continued delivery of original three skills alignment pilot 

projects – Early Years and Childcare, Financial and 
Professional Services and Glasgow College-Region; 

o MA Demand Statement completed to inform contracting 
strategy for 2020-21; and 

o Developed an evaluation framework and measures for all 
steps. 

 7 Regional Skills Investment Plans (RSIP), Skills Investment 
Plans (SIP) and Skills Action Plans (SAP) delivered and 
published, including South of Scotland RSIP and 
Decommissioning Skills Action Plan; and 

 SDS won the Scottish Financial Services Pioneer Award for 
their joint Fast Track project with City of Glasgow College 
and key financial sector employers. 

Ensure work-based learning is efficient, responsive and 
future-focused 

 
 SAAB Frameworks and Standards group supported the 

development of the Apprenticeship Approval Group 
governance structure and Frameworks & Standards 
strategy; 

 Pilots undertaken in Graduate Apprenticeships and 
work-based learning at SCQF Level 4/5 to test and learn 
from the current meta-skills model; and 

 In response to identified demand, and in partnership with 
employers, industry, and the devolved administrations of 
Wales and Northern Ireland, newly developed or 
reviewed the content of:  
o 82 suites of National Occupational Standards; 
o 49 Scottish Qualification products (SVQs/CBQs); 

and  
o 63 Apprenticeship Frameworks, including 18 Scottish 

Modern Apprenticeships. 
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STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2020 (CONT’D) 
 
SDS as an Organisation 
 
As an organisation, we accept our responsibility to model the changes we wish to see in other employers and public services on our journey 
towards 2035. As such, our fourth strategic goal is that Skills Development Scotland leads by example and continuously improves to 
achieve excellence. 
 
Headline progress and achievements from 2019-20 against the four strategies for delivering goal four are listed below: 
    
 
 

Adopt high-performing workplace practices, leading 
change in others  

 
 SDS were winners of Diversity in the Public Sector at the 

Scottish Diversity Awards 2019; 
 Achieved Gold Investors in People accreditation, having 

already achieved Gold Investors in Young People in 2018; 
and 

 SDS won the Learning and Development Award at the 
2019 HR Network Awards. 
 

Improve customer experience and customer service 
through enhanced use of data and technology  

  
 Embedded Power BI in various business areas including 

CIAG, National Training Programmes, HR and Finance, 
giving staff the ability to access and analyse their data 
quicker and easier than ever; 

 SDS confirmed as a provider of Official Statistics; and 
 Information Management Strategy and roadmap developed. 

Make efficient, effective and sustainable use of our 
resources  

 
 The SDS Young Talent programme offered 49 new work-

based learning opportunities (FA, MA, GA, Intern, Trainee 
Careers Advisers) in 2019-20, compared to 47 in 2018-19; 

 Carbon footprint - to the end of Q3, a 22% reduction in 
our carbon footprint was achieved when compared to Q1-
3 in 2016-17 (708 compared to 905 tonnes of CO2 
equivalent); and 

 Total value for money savings realised on central contracts 
placed by SDS in 2019-20 were £412,344, to the end of Q3. 
 

Drive better outcomes through deeper collaboration and 
partnership working  

 
 Supported the new South of Scotland Enterprise agency 

by providing finance, HR and IT support; 
 Engaged with Regional Economic Partnerships and 

Improvement Collaboratives to drive improved 
outcomes across Scotland; and 

 Improved the organisation’s own cyber resilience 
capabilities in line with the Public Sector Action Plan for 
Cyber Resilience, including joining the Cyber Security 
Information Sharing Partnership. 

 
 

Goal 4 Indicators 2019-20 
target 

2019-20 
actual 

2018-19 
target 

2018-19 
actual 

2017-18 
target 

2017-18 
actual 

2016-17 
target 

2016-17 
actual 

Absence rate 3.0% 3.5% 3.5% 3.2%6 3.5% 2.6% 3.5% 2.8% 

% SDS Young Talent participants going on 
to positive destinations n/a 94% n/a 93% n/a 95% n/a 91% 

% of Education Scotland Reviews scored as 
‘Very Good’ or ‘Excellent’ n/a 93% n/a 80% n/a 87% n/a 73% 

 
Employee Engagement 
 
Engaging our employees is a high priority for SDS. We work to ensure everyone understands their contribution to the delivery of our 
organisational goals, priorities, achievements and successes, as well as our ongoing commitment to fair work, wellbeing and a culture of 
everyday leadership.  
 
In 2019-20, we conducted our sixth consecutive annual ‘Your Views’ employee survey, which provides feedback on colleagues’ experiences 
of working at SDS and on the specific drivers of employee engagement. Over 91% percent of colleagues completed the survey for the third 
successive year, with results from previous years again either sustained or improved on in all areas. Key successes recognised by colleagues 
in the last 12 months included:  

• the provision of new laptops and the introduction of Office 365 enabling them to perform their roles more effectively and 
enhancing working conditions; 

• CPD provision through the SDS Academy;  
• improved working practices including collaboration and teamworking across SDS; and  
• improvements to the CIAG service offer. 

 
6 In the 2018-19 fiscal year the method for calculating absence was updated. Previously a snapshot was run on the 6th of each month to report the figures 
as recorded at that time. This method represented an underreporting of the incidence of absence in SDS 
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STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2020 (CONT’D) 
 
Colleagues continue to be engaged with, and informed of, the latest news and developments across SDS through a variety of communication 
channels, including weekly all-staff emails, and topical content on our intranet ‘Connect’. In addition, Yammer, an internal social network, 
has enabled colleagues to engage openly with each other on a range of topics, including subjects of personal and professional interest such 
as wellbeing and the environment. Targeted email communications are also used to inform specific teams or the leadership team for onward 
cascade. 
 
Our Youth Board continued to provide a platform for young people to have a voice within SDS, contribute to key decision making and 
influence our service offers. This year, that included Youth Board members contributing to SDS research on the future of work, inputting 
young people’s perspective on how SDS might model 2035 employer behaviours. 
 
Developing a strong partnership approach to working with our recognised trade unions helps meet our aim to demonstrate exemplary Fair 
Work practices. Our partnership work in 2019-20 included the implementation of a refreshed set of core HR policies, and work to develop 
a Health & Wellbeing Strategy. Joint work to implement the outstanding commitments to develop our pay and grading framework in line 
with our strategic pay review concluded this year. 
 
SDS continues to create a culture which enables its people to perform to the best of their capability. Our commitment to an annual minimum 
of 21 hours CPD per employee helped achieve a total of 10,747 learning days recorded by colleagues. To support learning, the SDS Academy 
was further enhanced this year by: 

• providing greater visibility and ownership of individual performance through the My Contribution Dashboard; 
• rebranding to ensure wider accessibility and compliance with universal standards for visual access; and 
• continued expansion of the Academy offer, including bite sized learning, e-learning, Skype calls, videos and workshops, and over 

200 resources available on MindTools.  
 
The SDS compliance learning renewal strategy delivered new mandatory learning for all, in areas of Freedom of Information and the Bribery 
Act; helping colleagues to understand and comply with their legal responsibilities. 
 

Employee Engagement Indicators 
(% employees agreeing) 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 Change7 

I am proud to work for SDS 93% 91% 89% 84% 57% +36 

I would recommend SDS as a place to work  94% 91% 89% 85% 64% +30 

I understand how my work contributes to my team’s performance 98% 96% 96% 96% 91% +7 

 
Equality and Diversity 
 
SDS is committed to advancing equality, diversity and inclusion, for our colleagues and customers. Throughout 2019-20, we continued to 
work with a range of equality and diversity partners to achieve this. Our Equality Management Group, and nationwide network of Equality 
Champions, support colleagues to be confident in delivering inclusive services to our customers. This year, our Champions took part in a 
range of development activity delivered by Who Cares? Scotland, Present Pal (dyslexia) and Carers Trust Scotland. Examples of our equality 
activity in 2019-20 included: 

• increasing the range of equality resources on our employee intranet;  
• increased use of social media to promote our commitment to equality and diversity, and the accessibility of our services; 
• ongoing internal equality and diversity communications to keep employees informed on equality issues, 
• partnership working to develop best practice in our internal LGBTI+ Allies Forum; 
• implementing positive action in our graduate internship programme by ringfencing places for disabled people; 
• piloting a work experience programme for under-represented groups, including care experienced, disabled and minority ethnic 

young people; 
• developing a mentoring programme for women focused on career progression and work life balance, delivered by senior female 

colleagues; and 
• introducing ‘mentally healthy workplaces’ training for people manager. 

 
Our Equality and Diversity Mainstreaming Report, published in April 2019, provides an update on progress in relation to our 2017-21 
Equality Outcomes, outcomes of an equal pay audit on our gender pay gap, and a detailed breakdown of our workforce by protected 
characteristic.   
 
 
  

 
7 Between 2015 and 2019  

https://www.skillsdevelopmentscotland.co.uk/media/45597/equality-diversity-mainstreaming-report-2019.pdf
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STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2020 (CONT’D) 
 
The gender balance within SDS at 31 March 2020 was: 

 Male Female 
Non-executive directors and co-opted board members 7 9 

Executive directors and senior executive managers 3 3 
Employees 467 1192 

 
SDS’s score and ranking in the Stonewall Workplace Equality Index again improved, from 18th in the UK in 2019, to 12th out of 503 
organisations in 2020. We were identified as Stonewall’s top employer in Scotland for the second year, and as one of the Top Trans Employers 
in the UK. Colleagues attended nine Pride events across Scotland this year, promoting SDS as both an inclusive employer and a provider of 
accessible services. 
 
SDS is a Disability Confident and Carer Positive engaged employer. Our ASN Assistant, employed within the HR Directorate, supports 
colleagues who are disabled or have additional support needs. Their work contributes to our strategy to ensure colleagues receive appropriate 
and consistent support, including reasonable adjustments, when required.   
 
Our 2019 employee survey included the full range of equality related questions, asked every two years, and continued to show progress as 
shown below. 
 

Equality and Diversity Tracking  
(% employees agreeing) 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 Change 8 

SDS is an Equal Opportunities Employer 94% 92% 91% 90% 82% +12 

SDS welcomes and accommodates the different needs of all colleagues 92% 89% 89% 86% 72% +20 

SDS is committed to improving performance on Equality and Diversity 96% - 95% - 76% +20 

SDS demonstrates a culture of dignity and respect  94% - 91% - 69% +25 
 
Sustainability 
 
SDS continues to act on its commitment to reduce its internal environmental impact from energy consumption, business travel and waste.  
 
In 2019-20, upgrading or resetting the heating/cooling system controls in six main sites resulted in a 25% reduction in energy consumption 
for these offices compared to 2018-19. These sites were prioritised as they had previously displayed false energy consumption profiles (e.g. 
high usage when the offices were closed).  
 
The use of online meetings, public transport and active travel continued to be promoted. In March 2020, our highest number of colleagues 
took part in Sustrans’ Scottish Workplace Journey Challenge since its launch in 2017. Some teams received presentations from the Carbon 
Management Team on their travel patterns to encourage behaviour change. SDS began its journey towards becoming a Cycle Friendly 
Employer through providing online resources on active travel and assessing the potential to install secure cycle storage at more sites.  
 
Waste accounts for a small percentage of SDS’s carbon footprint, however, we expanded our food waste recycling provision and assessed 
five further sites for the next rollout phase. Several site visits took place to assess and improve office recycling provisions and waste uplift 
setups.  
 
In July 2019, we undertook our third Carbon Trust Standard recertification, maintaining our score of 87%. The main areas of improvement 
since the 2017 recertification were environmental policy, carbon footprint data accounting and low carbon operating procedures, with 
continued excellence in internal responsibility, staff engagement and sustainable procurement. 
 
In the latter half of 2019-20, colleague consultation began for our new Climate Change Strategy, to be published in Autumn 2020. 
Consultation exercises included all colleague Skype calls, and workshops held with both SDS’s Leading Change Forum and the Senior 
Leadership Team.  Once published, this Strategy will form part of the mitigation of our corporate risk on climate change 
 
Procurement 
 
This year, SDS conducted a structured review of its existing fraud prevention controls, through application of the joint Audit Scotland and 
Police Scotland report on red flags in procurement, published in October 2019. Four key criteria were used to identify counter fraud 
measures: procurement; contracts; payments; and processes.  SDS were assured that effective internal controls are in place through separation 
of duties and segregation of duties. 
 
 

 
8 Between the earliest and most recent data shown 
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The new SDS Delegated Authority and Contract Signature Policy, published in March 2020, reflects governance structures in setting levels 
of authority and the scope of delegated procurement authority. 
 
Also, in 2019-20: 

• Fair Work criteria were included within evaluation for regulated procurements with an estimated value of £114.5 million; 
• The SDS Procurement and Legal team introduced a sector leading “Prevention of Modern Slavery in Procurement Policy” which 

details the measures Procurement are undertaking to minimise the risk of Modern Slavery in our supply chains. An e-learning 
module for colleagues was published on the SDS Academy, along with a Best Practice Guidance Note; 

• SDS awarded contracts to supported businesses totalling £0.2 million. SDS has expenditure of £2 in every £3 with Small and 
Medium Enterprises and a significant expenditure with not-for-profit organisations; and 

• SDS put in place the National Occupational Standards framework on behalf of the devolved administrations for Northern Ireland, 
Wales and Scotland.  

 
Gaelic Language 
 
During 2019-20, the third year of our second Gaelic Language Plan, we recruited our first Gaelic Modern Apprentice and continued to 
expand the number of Foundation Apprenticeship Frameworks delivered in Gaelic. The School Partnership Agreement (SPA) developed 
between SDS and Castlebay High School this year was the first ever to state the careers offer be delivered through the medium of Gaelic. 
We also produced a Gaelic career video profile for My World of Work and ran a number of Gaelic-specific careers events.  
 
SDS signed a Charter Agreement with Comhairle nan Eilean Siar (CNES) this year. Some of the ambitions detailed in the Agreement, to be 
taken forward jointly, have a strong Gaelic emphasis. In partnership with HIE, we will continue to deliver the Economy and Skills workstream 
of the Scottish Government’s Gaelic Initiative.  
 
Development of the third iteration of our Gaelic Language Plan began this year, with publication due in the second half of 2020. 
 
Section 172(1) Statement 
 
SDS is committed to effective engagement with all our stakeholders, customers and partners. The Directors are aware of their duty under 
s.172 of the Companies Act 2006 to act in the way which they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the 
Company for the benefit of its members as a whole and, in doing so, to have regard (amongst other matters) to: 

• the likely consequences of any decision in the long term; 
• the interests of the Company’s employees; 
• the need to foster the Company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others; 
• the impact of the Company’s operations on the community and the environment; 
• the desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and 
• the need to act fairly as between members of the Company. 

 
The Board is mindful that SDS’s success depends on its ability to engage effectively, work together constructively, and to take stakeholder 
views into account when designing, delivering and managing our products and services. Our Board already engages with a range of 
stakeholders, partners and customers via various routes, and in doing so, they can address matters which concern them. Members take part 
in stakeholder engagement activity through:   

• induction materials provided on appointment, which include an explanation of Directors’ duties, and the Board is regularly 
reminded of their s.172(1) duties; 

• scheduled Board and Committee meetings - stakeholder engagement is built into these meeting, with all papers clearly outlining 
what actions have been taken to consult with stakeholders on each matter to be discussed. Members can then decide as to whether 
additional consultation or activity to address stakeholder concerns should be carried out; 

• a programme of visits mapped out at the start of the financial year to stakeholder, partner and/or customer venues as part of our 
Board Committee programme. This is with the aim of members achieving first-hand knowledge of how our programmes, processes 
and systems work. In the last year visits have included those to Ayrshire college, Bosch at Eurocentral; 

• all Board members receive a monthly Stakeholder Engagement briefing which outlines all high-level activity undertaken within SDS 
over the period. The briefing has been very well-received by the members, being a useful tool to enable them to interact more 
effectively with stakeholders; and 

• Members are assigned as “Board Champions” e.g. for equalities, third sector, government, parliament, education. In this role they 
undertake direct stakeholder engagement with those in their allocated sector. This has included, for example, engaging with 
stakeholders at conferences, awards ceremonies, round tables, meetings with MSPs and visits to businesses as part of Scottish 
Apprenticeship Week. 

 
 
 

https://www.myworldofwork.co.uk/
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Financial Overview 
 
The results for the year to 31 March 2020 are contained in the attached financial statements, prepared in accordance with the 2019-20 
Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) and in the form directed by the Scottish Ministers, taking account of the Scottish Public 
Finance Manual.   
 
The FReM requires that the company should comply with the Companies Act, particularly with regard to the form and content of the annual 
report and financial statements, but, as a non-departmental public body, also follow the principles in the FReM where these go beyond the 
Companies Act. The accounting policies explain the basis on which the financial statements are prepared and transactions are recognised. 
 
The resource budget allocation for 2019-20 comprised a revised grant-in-aid provision of £220.4 million (2019: £209.3 million).  Revenue 
for the year was supplemented with other income generating activities of £12.8 million (2019: £13.1 million) on a cost recovery basis and 
£21.8 million (2019: £14.0 million) of European funding. 
 
Financial Management 
 
The group and company Statements of Financial Position at 31 March 2020 respectively report a net liability of £37.5 million (2019: £75.3 
million) and £37.5 million (2019: £80.4 million), which are both significantly influenced by a net pension liability of £60.0 million (2019: 
£91.6 million).  Although the annual actuarial pension valuation is prepared on a ‘best estimate’ basis, the accounting standard requires the 
discount rate to be set with reference to the yields on high quality corporate bonds irrespective of the actual investment strategy of the 
pension fund and, as such, the valuation is unlikely to reflect either the actual eventual cost of providing members’ benefits or the likely level 
of contributions required to fund the employer’s obligations.     
 
Prudent financial management throughout the year has though ensured our financial outturn, overall, is in keeping with the Resource and 
Capital budgets allocated by Scottish Ministers.  Removing the effects of actuarial adjustments, the financial statements for the year to 31 
March 2020 report an operating surplus for the group and parent company of £1.3 million (2019: £0.1 million).    
 
Our outturn against the elements of the budget allocation from the Scottish Government was as follows: 
 

 Expenditure Income Outturn Allocation Overspend/ 
(underspend) 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Resource budget (see below) 253,719 (34,770) 218,949 218,455 494 
Capital budget 1,268 - 1,268 1,956 (688) 
Non-cash costs including depreciation 124 - 124 945 (821) 
Total budget 255,111 (34,770) 220,341 221,356 (1,015) 
      
Annually managed expenditure 12,409 - 12,409 11,632 777 
      

 
Reconciliation of consolidated statement of comprehensive income to resource outturn: 
 

 £’000 
Total expenditure on ordinary activities, including tax 266,252 
Depreciation charge allocated to non-cash costs (124) 
Net pension costs attributed to annually managed expenditure (12,380) 
Corporation tax charged to annually managed expenditure (29) 
Interest income on parent company’s cash balances (153) 
Attributable to other sources, including European funding and IT services (34,617) 
 218,949 

 
The efficacy with which the company has been able to overcome budget challenges in 2019-20 is best evidenced in its achievement to 
contribute £5.0 million towards Scottish Government annual efficiency savings while demonstrating a year-on-year increase in its operational 
delivery.  Robust vacancy management throughout the year also enabled the company to offer staff the opportunity to participate in a limited 
voluntary severance programme in the final quarter of the financial year with a view to relieving some of the expected budget challenges in 
2020-21 and beyond, on the basis there would be no detriment to service delivery and business continuity.  This was delivered on the 
backdrop of enduring cashflow challenges as a result of the significant indirect impact of the EC imposed suspension of payments against 
the European Structural Funds Scotland programme, within which the company is a Lead Partner under the direction of Scottish 
Government as the Managing Authority. 
 
 



THE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT SCOTLAND CO. LIMITED                               Company Registration Number: SC202659 
 

    13 

STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2020 (CONT’D) 
 
At 31 March 2020 the group had accrued £41.4 million (2019: £20.5 million) of ESF-supported income against eligible and defrayed 
expenditure for which it was unable to submit claims for reimbursement due to the suspension imposed on the Managing Authority.  
Recognising the impact of the continued suspension, following regular engagement with its Sponsorship Team within Scottish Government, 
in March 2020 the group received £19.0 million short-term funding from Scottish Government for the continued delivery of key Ministerial 
commitments until payment of the ESF income.  While the suspension continues to be in place at the date of signing of this report, progress 
continues to be made between the Managing Authority and the European Commission to address the underlying issues, and with both a 
commitment from the Managing Authority to resume payment of all verified eligible claims and approval in May 2020 for the company to 
submit all outstanding claims, the group is well placed to have sufficient resources to repay the short term funding during 2020-21. 
 
In addition to ensuring our grant funding was fully expended within the parameters set by the Scottish Government, we also continued to 
demonstrate our drive and commitment to the programme of achieving significant efficiency gains and increased economic impact through 
collaborative working practices, principally through our lead in the provision of best value ICT services to partner organisations.  We 
continued to provide additional stimulus to local businesses and small and medium sized enterprises, and effective cash management enabled 
us to provide the best credit terms to our suppliers to help with their own flow of cash. 
 
Risk and Uncertainty 
 
During the year, Skills Development Scotland continued to use a structured approach for identifying, assessing and managing risks at 
corporate, directorate and business unit level to manage our strategic priorities and business functions so they are not adversely affected by 
significant risks that have not been anticipated. 
 
We continued to adhere to the SDS Risk Management and Internal Audit Policy, which is available to all staff on our intranet.  The Policy 
sets out our attitude to risk, our approach to managing the potential barriers to achieving our objectives and highlights that risk management 
and internal controls are firmly aligned to our ability to achieve key business objectives. 
 
We highlighted our principal risks in our Corporate Risk Register. The Register takes account of strategic and operational risks including 
those stemming from current challenges to deliver the four Goals as set out in the Strategic Plan. The Corporate Risk Register is reviewed 
by the SDS Directors during the year and is updated by Directors Group members at each SG meeting, on behalf of the Board, and is 
formally reported to the Audit and Risk Committee.  A snapshot of the risks as at 31 March 2020 is provided below: 

• managing the impacts of Covid-19 as an organisation and supporting  business and individuals through the crisis; 
• the strategy to respond to changes as a result of Brexit; 
• cashflow pressures as a consequence of suspension on settlement of European funding claims; and 
• exposure or loss resulting from a cyber-attack or data breach. 

 
A number of corporate risks were identified during the year; the most notable being the prospective impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on 
organisational delivery and performance.  At the start of the pandemic, SDS management identified a series of Covid-19 themes relating to 
the risk to service delivery and through timely intervention, including ensuring colleagues had appropriate guidance and equipment to be 
able to work remotely, we were able to mitigate the impact on this year’s performance targets and on our service to key stakeholders.  We 
recognise though the timing of the pandemic is likely to have a greater bearing on performance and the services we deliver in 2020-21 and, 
through the above detailed risk assurance process, we continue to robustly manage and monitor the risk of, for example, SDS being unable 
to accommodate the demand for PACE services, training provider financial hardship compromising the availability of resources to deliver 
apprenticeship targets, and the loss of service through periods of downtime of key IT applications.  SDS will have a central role to play in 
Scotland’s post-pandemic employment and economic recovery and unprecedented levels of demand will require a significant reskilling and 
upskilling of Scotland’s workforce.  
 
Company Status 
 
The Skills Development Scotland Co. Limited is a company limited by guarantee and registered in Scotland. The sole members are the 
Scottish Ministers.  SDS is an Executive Non-Departmental Public Body, operated through a limited company structure. 
 
SDS owns 100% of the issued share capital of Scottish UfI Limited.   
 
SDS had control of WBL Scotland, which was a charitable company limited by guarantee with the object of improving the employability and 
enterprise skills of the people of Scotland and increasing participation in learning and employment, until it was dissolved on 19 November 
2019.  The Articles of Association of WBL Scotland were amended to allow it to be wound up with a transfer of assets to the parent company.  
At the same time, SDS committed to using all assets transferred from WBL Scotland to SDS in accordance with the subsidiary undertaking’s 
objectives.  Upon dissolution, net assets of £5,084,851, comprising entirely of a cash balance, were transferred from WBL Scotland to SDS. 
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Scottish Ministers appoint the Chair, Chief Executive and non-executive directors of SDS, and up to seven of these directors are appointed 
to the board of Scottish UfI Limited. Scottish UfI Limited is not used for operational activities and did not trade during the year. The SDS 
Board is responsible for our overall direction and strategy and for securing the optimum performance from company assets.  There is a 
formal policy of delegated authority, which includes matters specifically reserved to the board for decisions.  All non-executive directors are 
independent of the company. 
 
Going Concern 
 
As at 31 March 2020, the group’s balance sheet had net liabilities of £37.5 million (2019: £75.3 million).  The directors are confident that the 
relationship with the Scottish Government is such that the company will have sufficient funding for the foreseeable future.  In particular, 
the directors have taken cognisance of the sole membership of Skills Development Scotland which Scottish Ministers assumed in September 
2004, and of the indication from Scottish Government of continued grant-in-aid funding in 2020-21.  Accordingly, it is appropriate to prepare 
the financial statements on a going concern basis. 
 
Future Developments 
 
Our Strategic Plan 2019-22 sets out what we aim to achieve over the three year period, with 2020-21 the second of these three years.  It also 
describes a process of open innovation in which we are investing to create a joint vision for 2035, which will provide longer-term direction 
for both SDS and the other agencies. 
 
The Covid-19 global crisis has obviously impacted our ability to deliver services as anticipated, and will continue to do so for some time. It 
has also created new, and still changing, priorities and opportunities for us. Our Interim Letter of Guidance, dated 22 April 2020, requests 
of SDS that “all but the most critical ‘business as usual’ activity must be re-evaluated and halted, unless it is clearly making a contribution to 
the challenge of Covid-19”. It continues by saying that our “focus, moving forward, must move to meeting the emerging fiscal, economic 
and social challenge of Covid-19”.  
 
We already know that these exceptional circumstances will have significant impact on Scotland’s people and its businesses.  The economic 
impact of Covid-19 is unprecedented. As many as 150,000 jobs in Scotland could be lost (IPPR, May 2020), while a survey of 400 Scottish 
businesses suggests 61% could go out of business despite government support (Scotianomics, 2020). The Scottish Government forecast that 
unemployment could rise from c.4% to anywhere between c.10% to c.15% taking one to three years to recover to pre-pandemic rates. SDS 
will be central to this recovery. We are already adapting our service delivery in response, and are ready to provide much-needed support to 
Scotland’s businesses and people, particularly to upskill and reskill in response to the changing labour market.  We recognise that delivery 
will also be dependent on our customer’s ability to access those services, which adds further challenge, and we anticipate a heavy demand 
for services such as PACE meaning that we must re-position in order to respond. We will continue to manage the risk Covid-19 presents as 
much as possible in the coming year and beyond. However, we cannot understate the size of the challenge facing Scotland’s economy, and 
anticipate this will also significantly impact our performance against key measures in the coming year.   
 
Our Operating Plan 2020-21, which we expect to publish later in 2020 following receipt of our full 2020-21 Letter of Guidance from Scottish 
Government, will set out in greater detail what we intend to achieve over the coming year. 
 
By order of the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
Damien Yeates 
Director and Accountable Officer  
 
26 June 2020 
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Strategic Report 
 
In accordance with section 414(c) (11) of the Companies Act 2006, Skills Development Scotland has chosen to include several matters in 
the Strategic Report which would otherwise be included in the Directors’ Report. 
 
These matters are: 

• the review of the business and performance against performance indicators; 
• future developments; 
• diversity and equality matters for employees; 
• employee consultation; and 
• engagement with supplier and customers. 

 
Directors and Their Interests 
 
The directors of the company who held office during the year and to the date of signing of these financial statements were as follows: 
 
Name      
T Black ^ (reappointed 1 June 2019 and 1 June 2020) 
D Boyd * 
E Corcoran * 
Dr M Dames * (appointed 8 January 2020) 
Dr C Evans * 
N Hamid * 
Prof D Hillier * (appointed 8 January 2020) 
W Mackie * 
Dr P Malik * (appointed 8 January 2020) 
M McCaig ^ (reappointed 1 June 2019 and 1 June 2020)  
F Mitchell * 
C Pollock * 
H Robertson ^ (retired 16 August 2019) 
E Russell ^ (appointed 15 February 2020) 
G Smith * 
P Taylor *  (appointed 8 January 2020) 
T Trotter ^ (reappointed 1 April 2020) 
D Yeates +    (Chief Executive)  
  
+ executive      * non-executive ^ co-opted board member 
 
Dr M Dames, Prof D Hillier, Dr P Malik and P Taylor were appointed as non-executive directors on 8 January 2020. 
 
T Black and M McCaig were reappointed as co-opted board members on 1 June 2019, and again on 1 June 2020.  T Trotter was reappointed 
as co-opted board member on 1 April 2020.  H Robertson, co-opted board member, retired on 16 August 2019 before her term was due to 
end on 18 June 2020.  E Russell was appointed as a co-opted board member on 15 February 2020.  
 
No Board members held any significant interests in the company or its subsidiary companies at any time during the year that conflicted with 
their management responsibilities.  Details of directors’ interests are given in Note 18 Related Parties.   
 
The Board of Skills Development Scotland, chaired by F Mitchell, met seven times during the year. 
 
Conflicts of Interest Procedures 
 
We have in place strict and comprehensive procedures to deal with potential conflicts of interest.  These include holding, and updating at 
least annually, registers of interests covering not only Board members but also members of staff. 
 
Interests which must be registered, in terms of the name and nature of the organisation in which the interest is held, include: remuneration, 
related undertakings, contracts, houses, land and buildings, shares and securities, gifts and hospitality, non-financial interests, and financial 
and non-financial interests of other persons.  Whenever a Board member or member of staff has an interest in an application for assistance, 
they are required to declare the interest and thereafter to take no part in the consideration of the application.  Such declarations by Board 
members are recorded in the minutes of the appropriate Board meetings. 
 
We publish the register of interests of our Board members on our website and all registers of interests are available for public review upon 
written request to the registered office. 

https://www.skillsdevelopmentscotland.co.uk/about/our-leadership-team/


THE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT SCOTLAND CO. LIMITED                               Company Registration Number: SC202659 
 

    16 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2020 (CONT’D) 
 
Standing Committees 
 
The Audit and Risk Committee oversees the strategic process for risk management, internal control, corporate governance and statutory 
financial obligations.  The Committee is chaired by an independent non-executive director and is comprised of at least two non-executive 
directors of SDS.  The Committee meets at least four times a year and has written terms of reference setting out its authority.  Internal and 
external auditors attend the Audit and Risk Committee. 
 
The Finance and Operational Performance Committee oversees the operating performance and financial management of SDS.  The 
Committee is chaired by an independent non-executive director and is comprised of at least two non-executive directors of SDS.  The 
Committee meets at least four times a year and has written terms of reference setting out its authority. 
 
The Remuneration and Human Resources Committee ensures detailed scrutiny of SDS remuneration matters including senior management 
team remuneration, company-wide pay awards and policy, pension arrangements and other human resources matters.  The Committee is 
chaired by an independent non-executive director and is comprised of at least two non-executive directors of SDS.   A Trades Union member 
also attends each meeting.  The Committee meets at least three times a year and has written terms of reference setting out its authority. 
 
The Service Development Committee oversees service redesign and implementation.  The Committee is chaired by an independent non-
executive director and is comprised of at least three non-executive directors of SDS.  The Committee meets at least four times a year and 
has written terms of reference setting out its authority. 
 
The Nominations Committee meets on an ad hoc basis and provides advice and support to the SDS Chair in respect of Board member 
required skills and responsibilities and, in particular, to review the membership of SDS Board Committees.  The Nominations Committee is 
chaired by an independent non-executive director and is comprised of at least three non-executive directors of SDS. 
 
Results  
 
The financial statements report a total comprehensive income for the group for the year of £37.8 million (2019: comprehensive expense of 
£41.3 million) which is influenced by IAS 19 pension adjustments.  Removing the effects of actuarial activities, the operating surplus is £1.3 
million (2019: £0.1 million). 
 
The directors recognise the significant impact of the actuarial valuation of pension assets and liabilities on the results for the year and are 
satisfied that the operating results are in accordance with management projections and within budgetary constraints and available reserves.   
 
The directors are aware of no events between the Statement of Financial Position date and the date when the financial statements were 
authorised for issue which influence the results. 
 
Accounting for Pension Scheme Liabilities 
 
Pension assets and liabilities are recognised in the financial statements in line with the accounting policy at Note 1.  IAS 19 Employee Benefits 
requires that the assets and liabilities of the pension scheme are incorporated into the balance sheet.  As more fully explained in Note 7 the 
group and company Statements of Financial Position report a net liability of £60.0 million for the pension schemes at 31 March 2020 (2019: 
£91.6 million).  
 
Actuarial valuations are prepared at the request of the administering authority on a triennial basis for each of the two Local Government 
Pensions Schemes (LGPS) the group participates in, namely; Strathclyde Pension Fund and Highland Pension Fund.  Details of the latest 
valuations, to 31 March 2017, can be obtained from published reports. 
 
Financial Instruments 
 
The company has exposure to liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk. The extent of this exposure is detailed in Note 20 Financial 
Instruments. 
 
Supplier Payment Policy 
 
SDS, like other public sector organisations, is bound by the Late Payments of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998, which requires payment 
to be made within 30 days of receipt of a valid invoice, or any other period the contract terms may specify.  It is our policy to agree terms of 
payment when orders for goods and services are placed and to adhere to those arrangements.  In addition, it is our policy, where possible, 
to comply with the Scottish Government’s Prompt Payment Commitment (issued December 2009) of making payment of authorised 
invoices within 10 days of receipt.  Average trade credit days as at 31 March 2020 were eight days (2019: 10 days). 
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Political and Charitable Donations 
 
The company made no charitable or political donations in the year. 
 
Amounts Payable to Auditor for Non-Audit Work 
 
Fees payable for non-audit services provided by the appointed auditor for the year ended 31 March 2020 were £nil (2019: £nil). 
 
Freedom of Information 
 
The Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act, which came into full force in January 2005, means members of the public can make a request 
to see information held by us.  In the year to 31 March 2020, we received and responded to 75 Freedom of Information requests (2019: 26).  
This is an increase on previous years due to a refreshed reporting mechanism following guidance received from the Scottish Information 
Commissioner’s office towards the end of 2018-19.  
 
Sickness Absence 
 
We have appropriate processes in place to manage all aspects of absence. During 2019-20, we launched an updated absence management 
policy and procedure to streamline our approach to the management of both short and long-term absence.  Absence Self Service is now well 
embedded with people managers and allows direct and timely access to record and review information relating to absence within their team.  
In the year to 31 March 2020, 3.5% (2019: 3.2%) of working time was lost due to staff sickness absence.  
 
Auditor 
 
As a non-profit making public sector company, which appears to the Scottish Ministers in terms of section 483(2) of that Act to carry out 
functions of a public nature, under The Companies Act 2006 (Scottish public sector companies to be audited by the Auditor General for 
Scotland) Order 2008, the Scottish Ministers have determined that the financial statements of the company shall be audited by the Auditor 
General for Scotland.  The Auditor General for Scotland has appointed Audit Scotland to undertake the audit for the year ended 31 March 
2020. 
 
The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.  These financial statements have 
been prepared in accordance with a form directed by the Scottish Ministers. 
 
The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no relevant 
audit information of which the company’s auditor is unaware, and each director has taken all steps that he/she ought to have taken as a 
director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditor is aware of that 
information. 
 
By order of the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
Damien Yeates 
Director and Accountable Officer  
 
26 June 2020 
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Chair and Non-Executive Directors 
 
The Chair and non-executive directors are paid an annual amount, as salary, at a level agreed by Scottish Ministers.  The salary rate is normally 
assessed on an annual basis.  Appointments are made on a two and four-year basis. 
 
Chief Executive 
 
The Chief Executive’s pay is reviewed annually, and any pay award is dependent on performance, and must be approved in accordance with 
Scottish Government protocols.  The Chief Executive’s performance is assessed formally by the Chair using pre-determined criteria. 
 
Executive Board 
 
Details are disclosed for senior executives, comprising the Chief Executive and senior executive managers fulfilling the roles of Senior 
Director of Service Development and Delivery, Senior Director of Enabling Services, Director of Human Resources, Director of National 
Training Programmes and Director of Skills Alignment.  The senior executive managers are not registered as directors of the company under 
the Companies Act.  
 
Service Contracts 
 
Staff appointments are based on merit and are on the basis of fair and open competition.  The Chief Executive and senior executive managers 
are permanent employees with up to 12 months’ notice periods.  There are no early termination payment clauses within the contracts. 
 
Remuneration & Appointments  
 
Due to the company’s NDPB status, remuneration is reviewed annually in accordance with Public Sector Pay Policy.  A formal pay remit 
proposal is approved by the Remuneration and Human Resources Committee, prior to pay negotiations with recognised Trades Unions.  
The Remuneration and Human Resources Committee determines the total individual remuneration packages of the Senior Director 
appointments, in accordance with public sector pay policy and in consultation with the Chair and Chief Executive.  
 
No benefits in kind were paid to and no long-term incentive schemes are held by the Chair or non-executive directors.   
 
The Chief Executive and senior executive managers’ posts are pensionable.  The Chair and non-executive director appointments are not 
pensionable. 
 
Appointments are carried out in line with employment legislation, with the exception of the Chair and non-executive directors’ positions 
which are carried out within the guidelines for senior public sector appointments. 
 
Salary and Allowances 
 
Salary includes gross salary but not employer’s pension contributions. There were no payments in respect of performance pay or bonuses 
during the year.  
 
Allowances are taxable benefits relating to designation as essential users within our Car Scheme.  
 
Pensions 
 
Pension benefits are provided through one of two HM Revenue & Customs approved defined benefit schemes.  
 
Employee contributions are currently set at a tiered rate dependent on assumed pensionable pay.   Typically for a senior executive manager 
this is c10%.  This would exclude performance pay, bonus or ex-gratia payments if these had occurred.  Employer contributions are c21%. 
Benefits accrue at the rate of 1/49th for each year of service. 
 
Cash Equivalent Transfer Values 
 
The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of pension scheme benefits accrued by a member 
at a particular point in time.  The benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from the 
scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or 
arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the pension benefits they have accrued in their former scheme.  
CETVs are calculated within the framework and guidelines prescribed by the Faculty of Actuaries. 
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Information Subject to Audit 
 
Beyond the requirements of the FReM, the following sections of this report are presented for audit: remuneration, pension, salary and 
allowance, benefits in kind, cash equivalent transfer values and compensation for loss of office and pension payment.  
 
Remuneration of the Chair, non-executive directors and co-opted board members for the year to 31 March 2020 was as follows: 

   
2019-20 

  
2018-19 

  Salaries/ 
fees 

(banded) 
Taxable 
benefits 

Pension 
benefits 
(banded) 

Total 
(banded)  

Salaries/ 
fees 

(banded) 
Taxable 
benefits 

Pension 
benefits 
(banded) 

Total 
(banded) 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
           
F Mitchell (Chair, appointed 
01/10/18) 

 
40 - 45 - - 40 - 45  20 - 25 - - 20 - 25 

J McClelland CBE (former Chair, 
term ended 30/09/18) 

 
     15 - 20 - - 15 - 20 

T Black^ (appointed 01/06/18)  0 - 5 - - 0 - 5  0 - 5 - - 0 - 5 
D Boyd*  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10 
E Corcoran*  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10 
M Dames* (appointed 08/01/20)  0 - 5 - - 0 - 5      
C Evans*   5 - 10 - - 5 - 10  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10 
N Hamid*   5 - 10 - - 5 - 10  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10 
D Hillier* (appointed 08/01/20)  0 - 5 - - 0 - 5      
W Mackie*  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10 
S MacKinnon* (term ended 
31/07/18) 

 
     0 - 5 - - 0 - 5 

P Malik* (appointed 08/01/20)  0 - 5 - - 0 - 5      
M McCaig^ (appointed 01/06/18)  - - - -  - - - - 
C Pollock*  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10 
H Robertson^ (retired 16/08/19) 0 - 5 - - 0 - 5  10 - 15 - - 10 - 15 
E Russell^ (appointed 15/02/20)  0 - 5 - - 0 - 5      
G Smith*  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10 
P Taylor* (appointed 08/01/20)  0 - 5 - - 0 - 5      
T Trotter^ (appointed 01/04/18)  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10  5 - 10 - - 5 - 10 
A Valentine^ (term ended 
31/03/19) 

 
     5 - 10 - - 5 - 10 

 
*non-executive ^co-opted board member 
 
The full year equivalent banded remuneration of M Dames, D Hillier, P Malik, E Russell and P Taylor for the year to 31 March 2020 is 
£5,000 to £10,000. 
 
M McCaig opted to waive her full year equivalent banded remuneration of £5,000 to £10,000 for the year to 31 March 2020. 
 
The total emoluments of the Chair, non-executive directors and co-opted board members for the year to 31 March 2020 were £121,440 
(2019: £114,930) and include £nil (2019: £nil) in respect of compensation payments for loss office. 
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Executive remuneration for the year to 31 March 2020 is summarised in accordance with criteria defined in the HM Government Financial 
Reporting Manual, published by HM Treasury, and UK Statutory Instrument 2013-1981. It is shown including a derived figure for pension 
benefits to comply with legislation. 
 

 2019-20  2018-19 

 

Salaries/ 
fees 

(banded) 
Taxable 
benefits 

Pension 
benefits*   
(banded) 

Total 
(banded) 

 Salaries/ 
fees 

(banded) 
Taxable 
benefits 

Pension 
benefits* 
(banded) 

Total 
(banded) 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
          
D Yeates  
Chief Executive 140 - 145 6.2 45 - 50 195 - 200  145 - 150 6.2 35 - 40 190 - 195 

C Anderson 
Director of Human Resources 90 - 95 5.0 30 - 35 125 - 130  85 - 90 5.0 30 - 35 120 - 125 

E Gallanagh  
Senior Director of Enabling 
Services 

120 - 125 5.0 35 - 40 160 - 165 
 

110 - 115 5.0 35 - 40 155 - 160 

C Hutton 
Director of National Training 
Programmes 

95 - 100 5.0 65 - 70 170 - 175 
 

90 - 95 5.0 80 - 85 175 - 180 

N Prentice 
Senior Director of Service 
Development and Delivery  

140 - 145 5.0 25 - 30 170 - 175 
 

135 - 140 5.0 25 - 30 165 - 170 

M Wightman 
Director of Skills Alignment 
(appointed 26/08/19) 

55 - 60 3.0 15 - 20 75 - 80 
 

    

 
* This is a notional figure, the calculation of which is stipulated in the Government Financial Reporting Manual 2019-20 section 5.3.21 (d), 
and not the value of contributions made. Accordingly, the Total (banded) includes the notional value and not actual remuneration for each 
director. In the case of N Prentice, the value is that of pension equivalent allowance, per paragraph 7 (e) of Statutory Instrument 2013 
number 1981. 
 
The full year equivalent banded remuneration of M Wightman, comprising salary and taxable benefits, for the year to 31 March 2020 is 
£100,000 to £105,000.  Reporting directly to the Chief Executives of both organisations, the shared role is jointly funded in equal proportion 
by SDS and the Scottish Funding Council. 
 
The notional pension benefits of D Yeates have been restated for the year to 31 March 2019 following correction to the extent to which 
earnings are pensionable.  The correction has had the effect of reducing pension benefits, which were previously stated as falling in the range 
£70,000 to £75,000, and total remuneration, which was previously stated as falling in the range £220,000 to £225,000, for the year to 31 
March 2019. 
 
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the banded remuneration of the highest paid director in their organisation 
and the median remuneration of the organisation’s workforce.  Banded remuneration for this purpose is the sum of salaries & fees, taxable 
benefits, and excludes notional values for pension benefits and cash equivalent transfer values. The banded remuneration of the highest paid 
director in Skills Development Scotland for the year to 31 March 2020 was £145,000 to £150,000 (2019: £150,000 to £155,000).  This was 
3.8 times (2019: 4.1 times) the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £38,488 (2019: £37,073). 
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Executive pension benefits for the year to 31 March 2020 were as follows: 

   

 

Accrued pension at 
age 65 and related 
lump sum as at 31 

March 2020 

Real increase in 
accrued pension and 
related lump sum at 

age 65 

Cash Equivalent Transfer Value  

At 
31 March 2020 

At 
31 March 2019 

Real increase 
in CETV 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
      
D Yeates 30 - 35 2.5 - 5.0 467 387 80 
C Anderson 10 - 15 0.0 - 2.5 168 129 39 
E Gallanagh 5 - 10 0.0 - 2.5 82 42 40 
C Hutton 45 - 50 2.5 - 5.0 739 634 105 
N Prentice - - - - - 
M Wightman 0 -5 0 - 5 11 - 11 

  
The accrued pension is inclusive of the lump sum payment that the member may elect to draw from their accrued pension entitlement.  
Members may elect to take a maximum of 25% of their accrued pension as a lump sum payment.  This will subsequently reduce their future 
pension entitlement. 
 
The real increase in the value of the CETV is the element in accrued pension funded by the employer.  It excludes increases due to inflation 
and contributions paid by the member.  It is worked out using common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period. 
 
 
 
 
 
Damien Yeates 
Director and Accountable Officer  
 
26 June 2020 
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' AND ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER’S RESPONSIBILITIES  
The directors and accountable officer are responsible for preparing the annual report and the group and parent financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and regulations. 

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and parent company financial statements for each financial year.  As required by the 
Accounts Direction applicable for the year issued by the Scottish Ministers they are required to prepare the group financial statements in 
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law and have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements on 
the same basis. 

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the group and parent company and of their surplus or deficit for that period. In preparing each of the group and parent 
company financial statements, the directors are required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
• state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the Accounts Direction applicable to 

the year issued by the Scottish Ministers; and 
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group and the parent 

company will continue in business.  
 

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent company's 
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company and enable them to ensure that 
its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and the Accounts Direction applicable to the year issued by the Scottish 
Ministers.  They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the group and to 
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 
 
The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the company's website. 
Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 
 
As set out in the Memorandum to Accountable Officers for Other Public Bodies, the accountable officer is personally responsible for the 
propriety and regularity of the body’s public finances and ensuring that its resources are used economically, efficiently and effectively.  This 
includes compliance with relevant guidance issued by Scottish Ministers, in particular the Scottish Public Finance Manual, and the Framework 
Document defining the key roles and responsibilities which underpin the relationship between the body and the Scottish Government. 

 
 

 

 

Damien Yeates 
Director and Accountable Officer  
 
26 June 2020 

http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Government/Finance/spfm/Accountability/aomemoother
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT BY THE ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER  
 
Scope of Responsibility 
 
As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of governance that supports the achievement of my 
organisation’s policies, aims and objectives, set by Scottish Ministers, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which I am 
personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. 
 
As the Accountable Officer for Skills Development Scotland (SDS) I am responsible for accounting for activities and I am required to: 

• sign a Governance Statement regarding SDS’s system of internal control and management of resources for inclusion in the annual 
report and financial statements; and 

• obtain assurances from SDS’s Directors on the maintenance and review of our internal control systems with reference to risk 
management, effectiveness of operations, economical and efficient use of resources, compliance with applicable policies, procedures, 
laws and regulations, safeguards against losses including those arising from fraud, irregularity or corruption and the integrity and 
reliability of information and data.  

 
The Scottish Public Finance Manual (SPFM) is issued by the Scottish Ministers to provide guidance to the Scottish Government and other 
relevant bodies on the proper handling and reporting of public funds. It sets out the relevant statutory, parliamentary and administrative 
requirements, emphasises the need for economy, efficiency and effectiveness, and promotes good practice and high standards of propriety. 
 
Governance Framework of Skills Development Scotland   
 
Skills Development Scotland has a Board in place to oversee our implementation of government policy. Amongst other things, the Board is 
responsible for the overall strategic direction of SDS within the policy, planning and resources framework determined by Scottish Ministers; 
for ensuring that the highest standards of governance are complied with; and that a prudent and effective framework of controls is in place 
to enable risks to be assessed and managed.  
 
The Board met seven times during the year and was supported in its work by the following committees, each of which was chaired by a non-
executive director and comprised of at least one further non-executive director:  

• the Audit and Risk Committee, which oversees the strategic process for risk management, internal control, corporate governance 
and statutory financial obligations and which met four times during the year; 

• the Finance and Operational Performance Committee, which oversees the operating performance and financial management of 
SDS and which met seven times during the year; 

• the Remuneration and Human Resources Committee, which ensures detailed scrutiny of SDS remuneration matters including senior 
management team remuneration, company-wide pay increases and policy, pension arrangements and other human resources matters 
and which met three times during the year; and 

• the Service Development Committee, which oversees service redesign and implementation and which met four times during the 
year. 

 
Good governance practice recommends that public body Boards undertake a self-evaluation review of their effectiveness on a regular basis.  
The SDS Board and Committees complete a self-evaluation on an annual basis.  The findings of the self-evaluation are used to identify 
opportunities for continuous improvement in the workings of the Board.  
 
The Board is further supported by The Enterprise and Skills Strategic Board, which was created in November 2017 in response to the 
Enterprise and Skills Review. Its objective is to align and co-ordinate the activities of Scotland's enterprise and skills agencies: Scottish 
Enterprise, Highlands and Islands Enterprise, Skills Development Scotland and the Scottish Funding Council. 
 
In June 2020, Internal Audit reported to the Audit and Risk Committee that SDS has a framework of controls in place that provides 
reasonable assurance regarding the organisation’s governance framework, effective and efficient achievement of objectives and the 
management of key risks, and proper arrangements are in place, in the areas they reviewed, to promote value for money and deliver best 
value. 
 
The Internal Audit opinion concluded that the programme of internal audit work carried out in 2019-20 identified an overall good level of 
assurance on SDS’s framework of governance, risk management and management control.  It further concluded that SDS has an appropriate 
and effective risk management framework in place which meets the requirements of  SPFM and which contributes to a successful risk culture. 
 
In alignment with Internal Audit findings, SDS has made improvements in a number of areas during the year, including: Risk Management, 
EIS Service Transition, Brexit preparations, Strategic Planning, HR policies and procedures, Financial controls, Equality action planning, 
Workforce planning, the www.apprenticeships.scot website, and Foundation and Graduate Apprenticeships.  
 
 
  

https://skillsdevelopmentscotland.sharepoint.com/sites/IShare/Finance/FinancialAccounts/Financial%20Accounts%20and%20Tax/Year%20Ends/Year%20End%20March%202020/Word%20SDS%20Accounts/www.apprenticeships.scot
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Skills Development Scotland’s System of Internal Control 
 
SDS’s system of internal controls is in line with guidance from Scottish Ministers provided in the Scottish Public Finance Manual (SPFM) 
and has been in place for the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. It is 
designed to identify the principal risks to the achievement of SDS’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the nature and extent of those 
risks and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. In line with any system of internal control it is designed to manage rather 
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve our policies, aims and objectives and provides reasonable and not absolute assurance of 
effectiveness.  
 
Internal Audit undertakes a review of SDS’s internal controls at least annually which cover key controls including financial, operational and 
compliance controls.    
 
Internal Audit 
 
In 2019-20 our Internal Audit service was principally provided by a shared service between Scottish Enterprise and Skills Development 
Scotland, and supplemented by Ernst & Young for IT audits.  The service providers operate in accordance with the UK Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards.  
 
The 2019-20 Internal Audit Plan, which was endorsed by SDS’s Audit and Risk Committee, was informed by an analysis of the risk to 
which SDS is exposed and was made up of a programme of thirteen proposed reviews by Internal Audit, targeted at key risk areas. The 
additional Ernst & Young audit work included a programme of audits which targeted key IT risks; including service transition.     
 
At each quarterly Audit and Risk Committee meeting Internal Audit provided a report on their internal audit activity and the Risk and 
Internal Audit Manager reported on progress with Internal Audit recommendations.  No major issues were identified in twelve of the thirteen  
reviews carried out by SDS’s Internal Audit service providers in 2019-20 and significant progress was made in addressing all key 
recommendations from a Cyber Security audit which initially concluded only limited assurance could be gained from the controls in place.   
 
In response to the recommendations of the Cyber Security audit, SDS undertook the implementation of a managed Security Operations 
Centre, implemented multi-factor authentication for all users, completed a programme to remove legacy systems, continued with a Security 
Testing programme and ran user Cyber Awareness activities.  A follow up review highlighted the progress which had been made and in 
particular noted SDS’s engagement with an independent third-party to complete a Cyber Maturity Assessment in June 2020. 
 
The Internal Audit Annual Report is presented to the June meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee. It includes an independent and 
objective opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of SDS’s systems of internal control and governance and any recommendations for 
improvements.  
 
The Head of Internal Audit has direct unimpeded access throughout the year to the Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee, the Chief 
Executive and the Senior Director of Enabling Services. 
 
Internal Financial Controls 
 
Our system of internal financial controls is based on a framework of financial regulations; monitoring committees; delegation and 
accountability for officers; administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and regular financial management information 
review.  
 
In particular, our financial controls include:  

• Financial systems which include:  
o comprehensive budgeting systems; 
o documented budget processes; 
o budgets aligned to plans; 
o accurate reporting of financial positions; 
o regular reviews by members of the Directors Group of Budgetary Control Reports which identify income and expenditure 

to date and compare projected outturn with approved budgets; appropriate committees also consider these reports; 
o measuring financial and other performance against targets; and  
o clearly defined control guidelines.  

• Joint HR and Payroll system controls to ensure staff remuneration and reimbursement payments are made correctly and on time; 
• Procurement system controls to ensure orders for goods and services are properly authorised and creditor system controls to ensure 

payments made to suppliers are correct; 
• Income and debtor’s controls to ensure they are correctly identified, collected and accounted for; 
• Controls over the operation of computer systems and administrative procedures to ensure secure systems are developed to meet 

business and accounting needs, with particular regard to cyber security; and 
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• The Fraud Policy is available on the SDS intranet and is communicated via new staff induction; mandatory Counter Fraud e-learning 
on the SDS Academy and at bespoke Fraud Awareness workshops. The Fraud Response Plan meets SPFM guidance and there are 
effective avenues for reporting suspicions of fraud, via the Fraud and Financial Irregularity Response Group (FFIRG) and via 
Whistle Blowing and Concerns Portal arrangements. The Fraud and Financial Irregularity Response Plan was updated in 2019-20 
to reflect strengthened governance, including the introduction of a quarterly update with SDS Directors and Service Level 
Agreements for response times. 

 
Risk Management Arrangements 
 
Our Risk Management Framework is designed to meet guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers.  It complies with SPFM direction and 
builds on several years of good practice.  Its key components are: 
 

• a Risk Management Strategy which sets out how we will enhance current processes to manage our risks to the delivery of our 
strategic and operational objectives;   

• a Risk Management & Internal Audit Policy which sets out the SDS Risk Appetite and how risks should be identified and controlled.  
The Policy is available to all staff on the Skills Development Scotland intranet; 

• a Risk Information Management System which is used to record, monitor and report on risk on a consistent basis across SDS; 
• corporate, directorate, business area and project risk registers which follow the guidance of HM Treasury’s Orange Book on Risk 

Management; 
• the Corporate Risk Register which records those risks that impact on SDS and are likely to affect our ability to achieve our strategic 

goals and objectives (including the impact of Covid-19 on future performance). The Risk Register is reviewed by the Directors 
Group monthly and includes a review of key current concerns, thus ensuring the risk profile is current. On a quarterly basis, it is 
reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee and the Executive Board and includes consideration of progress on agreed actions to 
manage the risks;  

• directorate, business area and project risk registers identify and document significant risks at directorate and service level, and 
outline the key reasons for the current risk exposure and plans in place to achieve optimum risk exposure; 

• senior management each complete six-monthly Risk Assurance Statements and an Annual Internal Control Statement to assure the 
Accountable Officer that internal controls, including risk management arrangements, within their directorate are operating 
effectively and are being monitored on an ongoing basis. This is supported with a quarterly review of the Directors Group risk 
management arrangements; 

• risk management arrangements, which were enhanced following reviews of all six-month Risk Assurance Statements,  an 
independent audit by Internal Audit, a review of the 2019-20 Annual Internal Control Statements; and benchmarking with the 
Institute of Risk Management best practice literature. Further enhancements to the assessment of risk controls will be incorporated 
in the 2020-21 Continuous Improvement Plan; 

• each identified risk, both at a corporate and local level, has an individual Risk Owner responsible for monitoring the risk and 
ensuring that any identified mitigating actions are implemented; 

• the Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of SDS’s risk management approach and receives, 
from the Senior Director of Enabling Services, Risk Management Reports on a quarterly basis.  The Board also receives regular 
updates on internal control from the Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee; 

• a set of Risk KPIs are collected monthly and are reported to Senior Directors identifying any weaknesses in our approach to risk 
management; 

• directorates are responsible for ensuring early and full reporting of critical business risks. Specialist functions (business continuity, 
health and safety and information security) are in place to manage specific types of risk and these provide the Board and 
management with assurance in these areas; 

• risk management is also a key component of SDS’s project planning and appraisal process, via project initiation documents and 
project briefs;  

• awareness and training sessions are held as required and a risk management element is included in the SDS Induction Programme 
for new members of staff.  There is also a separate section on Risk Management Guidance on the SDS intranet; and 

• a ‘Your Views’ survey of all staff is used to measure the level of willingness to report risk across the business.    
 

The management of risk is the responsibility of all managers and staff throughout SDS and they have a responsibility to be risk aware at all 
times. All employees have a personal responsibility to: 

• be aware of and comply with policies and procedures; 
• be aware of risks at all times and take reasonable action to identify, eliminate where possible, or control them; 
• notify line managers of risks they have identified which cannot be adequately managed; and 
• participate in risk management education and training. 
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Details of significant risk-related matters during the year  
 
There have been no significant risk related matters that have required additional action or escalation out with our normal risk management 
process as described above.  SDS has quantified the level of potential risks arising from audit discussions between the Scottish Government 
(SG) and the European Commission (EC) in relation to the administering of European Social Funds (ESF).  
 
In collaboration with the Scottish Government Managing Authority for ESF, SDS has designed and executed compliant initiatives based on 
Scottish Government policy guidance and external legal advice and, as an outcome of the audit discussions, SDS, as with other lead partners, 
has agreement from the Managing Authority that its approach to identifying qualifying expenditure is now compliant with the views of the 
EC Audit Mission in their assessment of programme management by Scottish Government.  SDS has supported the Managing Authority 
and the SG Audit Authority in its proposals to the EC 
 
In relation to the Covid-19 pandemic and its potential impact on SDS, key risks were identified to the delivery of programmes, and financial 
and staff availability.  Since March 2020, SDS has been operating recommended social distancing measures and all staff have been equipped 
to work remotely.  Staff safety and wellbeing has been of crucial importance and tips, tools and online resources have been made available 
with colleagues encouraged to maintain open lines of communication. 
 
As the economic impact continues to evolve, SDS has been redesigning its services to meet the present and future needs of its customers 
and stakeholders, and continues to work in partnership with SG and UK Government policies and strategies.  SDS implemented its Business 
Continuity Plans to ensure that key services remain available, however key risks around service delivery, such as SDS being unable to meet 
demand for PACE services, the configuration of CIAG services, and training provider/employer financial hardship compromising 
apprenticeship opportunities and attainments, have been identified and are being managed at an operational and strategic level through an 
established and robust risk management approach. 
 
Significant lapses of data security  
 
In the year to 31 March 2020 two data breaches were identified and reported to the Information Commissioner’s office (ICO). These related 
to unauthorised access by SDS staff to personal information.   The ICO response noted the immediate remedial action undertaken by SDS 
in each case to identify and address the root cause and to mitigate their consequences. The ICO confirmed that no action would be pursued 
and that the cases were considered closed. SDS completed all mitigating actions arising during 2019-20. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Having reviewed the above, it is my opinion that reasonable assurance can be placed upon the adequacy and effectiveness of Skills 
Development Scotland’s governance arrangements, internal control and management of resources during the year ended 31 March 2020.   
 
My opinion is informed by: 

• the views of the Audit and Risk Committee on assurance arrangements; 
• the views of the Risk and Internal Audit Manager on the quality of the organisation’s management of risks 
• the opinion of Internal Audit on the quality of the systems of governance, management and risk control; 
• assurances from senior management provided by our Risk Framework in place across the organisation, including Risk Assurance 

Statements and Annual Internal Control Statements, in line with SPFM guidance; 
• feedback from the business on our use of resources, responses to risk and the extent to which in-year budgets and other targets 

have been met; and 
• comments made by the external auditor in its management letters and other reports. 
  

 
 
 
 
Damien Yeates 
Director and Accountable Officer 
 
26 June 2020 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT 
SCOTLAND CO. LIMITED, THE AUDITOR GENERAL FOR SCOTLAND AND THE SCOTTISH 
PARLIAMENT  
 
Report on the audit of the financial statements 
 
Opinion on financial statements 
 
I have audited the financial statements in the annual report and financial statements of The Skills Development Scotland Co. Limited 
and its group for the year ended 31 March 2020 under The Companies Act 2006 (Scottish public sector companies to be audited by the 
Auditor General for Scotland) Order 2008. The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position - Group, the Statement 
of Financial Position – Company, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity, 
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and as interpreted and adapted by the 2019/20 Government Financial Reporting 
Manual (the 2019/20 FReM). 
 
In my opinion the accompanying financial statements:  

• give a true and fair view in accordance with the directions made under the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 
2000 of the state of affairs of the company and its group as at 31 March 2020 and of the group’s total comprehensive income 
for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, as interpreted and adapted by the 
2019/20 FReM; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and directions made under the Public 
Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 by the Scottish Ministers.  

 
Basis for opinion 
 
I conducted my audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)), as required by the 
Code of Audit Practice approved by the Auditor General for Scotland. My responsibilities under those standards are further described 
in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my report. I was appointed by the Auditor General on 
26 May 2017. The period of total uninterrupted appointment is three years. I am independent of the company and its group in accordance 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in the UK including the Financial Reporting 
Council’s Ethical Standard, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. Non-audit services 
prohibited by the Ethical Standard were not provided to the company or its group. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.  
 
Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting 
 
I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require me to report to you where: 

• the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or  
• the company has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt 

about its ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the 
date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

 
Risks of material misstatement  
 
I have reported in a separate Annual Audit Report, which is available from the Audit Scotland website, the most significant assessed risks 
of material misstatement that I identified and my conclusions thereon. 
 
Responsibilities of the directors and Accountable Officer for the financial statements 
 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' and Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities, the directors and Accountable Officer 
are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the financial reporting 
framework, and for such internal control as the directors and Accountable Officer determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Accountable Officer is responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless deemed 
inappropriate. 
 
 

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/our-work/annual-audits
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT 
SCOTLAND CO. LIMITED, THE AUDITOR GENERAL FOR SCOTLAND AND THE SCOTTISH 
PARLIAMENT (CONT’D) 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
 
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. The capability of the audit to detect fraud and 
other irregularities depends on factors such as the skilfulness of the perpetrator, the frequency and extent of manipulation, the degree of 
collusion involved, the relative size of individual amounts manipulated, and the seniority of those individuals involved. I therefore design 
and perform audit procedures which respond to the assessed risks of material misstatement due to fraud. 
 
A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting 
Council's website www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of my auditor’s report. 
 
Other information in the annual report and financial statements 
 
The directors and Accountable Officer are responsible for the other information in the annual report and financial statements. The other 
information comprises the information other than the financial statements, the audited part of the Remuneration Report, and my auditor’s 
report thereon. My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon except on matters prescribed by the Auditor General for Scotland to the extent explicitly stated later in this report. 
 
In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read all the other information in the annual report and 
financial statements and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If I identify such material inconsistencies or apparent 
material misstatements, I am required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material 
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Report on regularity of expenditure and income 
 
Opinion on regularity 
 
In my opinion in all material respects the expenditure and income in the financial statements were incurred or applied in accordance with 
any applicable enactments and guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers.  
 
Responsibilities for regularity 
 
The directors and Accountable Officer are responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure and income. I am responsible for 
expressing an opinion on the regularity of expenditure and income in accordance with the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) 
Act 2000.  
 
Report on other requirements 
 
Opinions on matters prescribed by the Auditor General for Scotland 
 
In my opinion, the audited part of the Remuneration Report has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 
and directions made under the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 by the Scottish Ministers.  
 
In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:  

• the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are 
prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies 
Act 2006 and directions made under the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 by the Scottish Ministers; and 

• the information given in the Governance Statement for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is 
consistent with the financial statements and that report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and 
directions made under the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 by the Scottish Ministers. 

https://www.frc.org.uk/Our-Work/Audit-and-Actuarial-Regulation/Audit-and-assurance/Standards-and-guidance/Standards-and-guidance-for-auditors/Auditors-responsibilities-for-audit/Description-of-auditors-responsibilities-for-audit.aspx
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT 
SCOTLAND CO. LIMITED, THE AUDITOR GENERAL FOR SCOTLAND AND THE SCOTTISH 
PARLIAMENT (CONT’D) 
 
Matters on which I am required to report by exception 
 
I am required by the Auditor General for Scotland to report to you if, in my opinion: 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept; or  
• the financial statements and the audited part of the Remuneration Report are not in agreement with the accounting records; or  
• I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit.  

 
I have nothing to report in respect of these matters.  
 
Conclusions on wider scope responsibilities  
 
In addition to my responsibilities for the annual report and financial statements, my conclusions on the wider scope responsibilities 
specified in the Code of Audit Practice are set out in my Annual Audit Report. 
 
Use of my report 
 
This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) 
Act 2000 and for no other purpose. In accordance with paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit Practice, I do not undertake to have 
responsibilities to members or officers, in their individual capacities, or to third parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Gordon Smail 
Audit Director 
Audit Scotland  
4th Floor, 102 West Port 
Edinburgh  EH3 9DN 

26 June 2020 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - GROUP 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2020 
 

         
      Group  Group 
      2020  2019 
    Notes  £’000  £’000 
         
ASSETS         
NON-CURRENT ASSETS         
Property, plant and equipment    4  1,144  - 
      1,144  - 
         
CURRENT ASSETS         
Trade and other receivables    5  51,102  31,768 
Cash and cash equivalents      9,971  9,144 
      61,073  40,912 
         
TOTAL ASSETS      62,217  40,912 
         
EQUITY         
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS 
OF THE COMPANY 

        

Retained losses    6  (37,505)  (75,319) 
         
TOTAL EQUITY      (37,505)  (75,319) 
         
LIABILITIES         
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES         
Retirement benefit obligations    7  60,026  91,631 
      60,026  91,631 
         
CURRENT LIABILITIES         
Trade and other payables    8  37,299  16,545 
Current income tax liabilities    9  29  21 
Provisions for other liabilities and charges    10  2,368  8,034 
      39,696  24,600 
         
TOTAL LIABILITIES      99,722  116,231 
         
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES      62,217  40,912 
         

The notes on pages 35 to 56 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
 
The financial statements on pages 30 to 56 were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on 26 June 2020 and were 
signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
Damien Yeates 
Director and Accountable Officer  
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - COMPANY 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2020 
 

         
      Company  Company 
      2020  2019 
    Notes  £’000  £’000 
         
ASSETS         
NON-CURRENT ASSETS         
Property, plant and equipment    4  1,144  - 
      1,144  - 
         
CURRENT ASSETS         
Trade and other receivables    5  51,102  32,347 
Cash and cash equivalents      9,971  3,474 
      61,073  35,821 
         
TOTAL ASSETS      62,217  35,821 
         
EQUITY         
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE 
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 

        

Retained losses    6  (37,505)  (80,403) 
         
TOTAL EQUITY      (37,505)  (80,403) 
         
LIABILITIES         
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES         
Retirement benefit obligations    7  60,026  91,631 
      60,026  91,631 
         
CURRENT LIABILITIES         
Trade and other payables    8  37,299  16,538 
Current income tax liabilities    9  29  21 
Provisions for other liabilities and charges    10  2,368  8,034 
      39,696  24,593 
         
TOTAL LIABILITIES      99,722  116,224 
         
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES      62,217  35,821 
         

The notes on pages 35 to 56 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
 
The financial statements on pages 30 to 56 were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on 26 June 2020 and were 
signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
Damien Yeates 
Director and Accountable Officer  
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 
 

         
         
      2020  2019 
    Notes  £’000  £’000 
         
         
Revenue    13  255,028  236,432 
         
Cost of sales      (11,843)  (12,081) 
         
Gross surplus      243,185  224,351 
         
Operating expenditure    14  (215,277)  (201,819) 
         
Administrative expenses    14  (36,760)  (35,518) 
         
Operating deficit      (8,852)  (12,986) 
         
Finance cost    16  (2,343)  (1,560) 
         
Finance income    16  153  146 
         
Deficit on ordinary activities before tax      (11,042)  (14,400) 
         
Tax expense    9  (29)  (20) 
         
Deficit on ordinary activities after tax      (11,071)  (14,420) 
         
Other comprehensive income/(expense)         
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or 
loss: 

        

         
Actuarial gains/(losses) recognised in retirement benefit scheme  7  48,885  (26,837) 
         
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year     48,885  (26,837) 
         
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year   37,814  (41,257) 
         

All of the above results are derived from continuing operations and are due to the equity holders of the company. 
 
The notes on pages 35 to 56 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
 
The company has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present the parent company 
statement of income.  The total comprehensive income for the parent company for the year is £37.8 million (2019: comprehensive 
expense £41.3 million) and is influenced by IAS 19 pension adjustments.  Removing the effects of those actuarial pension adjustments, 
the operating income is £1.3 million (2019: £0.1 million). 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS’ EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 
 

       
       
     Group Company 
     £’000 £’000 
       
Balance at 1 April 2018     (34,062) (39,110) 
Total comprehensive expense for the year     (41,257) (41,293) 
       
Balance at 31 March 2019     (75,319) (80,403) 
       
Balance at 1 April 2019     (75,319) (80,403) 
Total comprehensive income for the year     37,814 37,814 
Transfer of WBL Scotland assets     - 5,084 
       
Balance at 31 March 2020     (37,505) (37,505) 
       
       

 



THE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT SCOTLAND CO. LIMITED                               Company Registration Number: SC202659 
 

    34 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 
 

     
  2020  2019 
 Notes £’000  £’000 
     
Cash flows from operating activities     
Cash receipts: Grant-in-aid  220,411  209,343 
Cash receipts: Customers  35,750  12,861 
Total cash received  256,161  222,204 
     
Cash paid to suppliers and employees  (254,199)  (233,247) 
     
Cash generated from operations  1,962  (11,043) 
Interest received 16 153  146 
Income tax paid  (20)  (15) 
     
Net cash generated from operating activities  2,095  (10,912) 
     
Cash flows from investing activities     
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (1,268)  - 
     
Net cash generated from investing activities  (1,268)  - 
     
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   827  (10,912) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  9,144  20,056 
     
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  9,971  9,144 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 
Note 1 
 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.  These policies have been 
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
 
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable accounting standards. 

 
(a) Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements are prepared in a form determined by the Scottish Ministers in accordance with the Framework Document 
between the Company and the Scottish Ministers.   

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2019-20 Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) issued 
by HM Treasury, International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRS) and IFRIC Interpretations.  
The FReM requires that the group should comply with the Companies Act, but, as a non-departmental public body, also follow the 
principles in the FReM (for example, in preparing a remuneration report) where these go beyond the Companies Act.   

The FReM states that non-departmental public bodies should account for grant-in-aid as a movement in reserves rather than income.  
However, the group has concluded that under the Companies Act it is appropriate to continue to account for grant-in-aid as income, on 
the basis that grant-in-aid received by the group is required in order to carry out a function which its owners have asked it to perform.  
On that basis, the group considers grant-in-aid to be an exchange transaction and, as such, requires to be accounted for in the income 
statement.   

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires 
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of 
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed 
in Note 2. 

Where the FReM permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which has been judged to be the most appropriate to the 
particular circumstances of the group for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected.   

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes the continued support of the Scottish 
Government.  Grant-in-aid for 2020-21 is £224.0 million and has already been included in the Scottish Government’s estimates for that 
year, which have been approved by Parliament, and there is no reason to believe that the Scottish Government’s full sponsorship and 
future Parliamentary approval will not be forthcoming.   

(b) Basis of Consolidation  
Subsidiaries 
Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities) over which the group has the power to govern the financial and operating 
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting 
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the group controls another entity. Subsidiaries 
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control 
ceases.    

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses 
are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies 
adopted by the group. 

(c) Segment Reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The 
chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has 
been identified as the steering committee that makes strategic decisions. 

(d) Property, plant and equipment 
The group does not own any land and buildings.  All other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. 
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.  The group capitalises individual items 
which have a cost of at least £10,000 or a group of related purchases which have an aggregate cost of at least £100,000. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Note 1 (cont’d) 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  The 
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.  All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the 
financial period in which they are incurred. 

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method, pro-rata on the first and final year, to allocate their cost or 
revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows: 

• Additions to leasehold property:  5 years 
• Furniture & fittings:   5 years 
• Computer equipment:   3 - 5 years 
• Software:    3 - 5 years 

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other 
(losses)/gains – net’ in the income statement.  

(e) Intangible assets 

Recognition 

Intangible assets are recognised where the costs can be measured reliably and there is a clear future economic benefit attributable from 
the asset that will flow through to the group. 

Intangible assets are internally generated assets without physical substance.  All intangible assets recognised have finite useful lives and 
are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation.  Cost is defined as the direct labour and other costs directly attributable to the 
development of the intangible asset. 
Digital applications that deliver significant economic benefit are assumed to be digital developments that provide a means of delivering 
specific services to customers in line with the company’s business objectives, or which deliver service benefits by way of savings or 
improvements to internal processes, and which have a cost of at least £250,000. 
Amortisation 

Amortisation is calculated over the life of the asset. Amortisation is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 
on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the intangible assets from the date that they are available for use, since this most closely 
reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The expected useful lives for the 
current and comparative periods are as follows: 

• Digital applications that deliver significant economic benefit:  over 3 years 
Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriate. 

Impairment 
Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet date and any impairment losses are recognised in the income 
statement.   

(f) Financial Instruments 

Financial assets 

Classification 

The group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at amortised cost, at fair value through other comprehensive income, 
and at fair value through the income statement.  The classification depends on the group’s business model for managing the financial 
asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.  Management determines the classification of its financial assets 
at initial recognition and subsequently only when the group’s business model for managing those financial assets changes. 

a) Financial assets at amortised cost 

Financial assets at amortised cost are those assets held by the group for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows only and 
where the contractual terms of the asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.  They are included 
in current assets and comprise trade and other receivables and cash at bank and in hand in the statement of financial position. 



THE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT SCOTLAND CO. LIMITED                               Company Registration Number: SC202659 
 

    37 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 
Note 1 (cont’d) 
 
b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are either those assets held by the group with the objective of 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, where the contractual terms of the asset give rise to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest, or are irrevocably elected equity instruments.  They are included in current assets, 
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the year end, which are classified as non-current assets. 

c) Financial assets at fair value through the income statement 

Financial assets at fair value through the income statement are those financial assets that are either not classified in any of the other 
categories or are irrevocably designated in this category to significantly reduce a measurement or recognition inconsistency.  They 
are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the year end, which are classified as non-current 
assets. 

Recognition and measurement 

Financial assets are recognised when the group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.  Financial assets 
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or have been transferred and the group has transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.  

With the exception of trade receivables, financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.  Trade receivables are recognised initially at their transaction price. 

After initial recognition, financial assets are measured in accordance with their financial instrument classification. 

A loss allowance impairment for expected credit losses is recognised for assets classified as either financial assets at amortised cost or financial 
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.  The loss allowance for the financial instrument is measured at an amount equal to the 
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.  With the 
exception of trade receivables, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the 
loss allowance for the financial instrument is measured at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.  The loss allowance for 
trade receivables is measured, in all circumstances, at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses 

An impairment gain or loss representing the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at 
the reporting date is recognised in the income statement. 

Financial Liabilities 

Classification 

The group classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories: at fair value through surplus or deficit, and other financial liabilities.  
The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial liabilities were issued.  Management determines the classification of its 
financial liabilities at initial recognition. 

a) Financial liabilities at fair value  

Financial liabilities at fair value comprise derivatives. Liabilities in this category are classified as current liabilities.  The group does 
not trade in derivatives and does not apply hedge accounting. 

b) Other financial liabilities 

Other financial liabilities are included in current liabilities, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date.  
These are classified as non-current liabilities.  The group’s other financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables in the balance 
sheet. 

Recognition and measurement  

Financial liabilities are recognised when the group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.  A financial 
liability is removed from the balance sheet when it is extinguished, that is when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expired. 

a) Financial liabilities at fair value  

Financial liabilities carried at fair value are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income 
statement.  Financial liabilities carried at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value.  Gains or losses arising from changes in 
the fair value are presented in the income statement. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Note 1 (cont’d) 
 
b) Other financial liabilities 

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. 

Additional information is provided in Note 20. 

(g) Trade Receivables 
Trade receivables are recognised at cost less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established 
when there is objective evidence that the group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the 
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, 
and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The 
amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the value of estimated future cash flows.  The carrying 
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement 
within ‘administrative expenses’.  

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of 
amounts previously written off are credited against ‘administrative expenses’ in the income statement. 

(h) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance 
sheet. 

(i) Trade Payables 

Trade payables are recognised at cost. 

(j) Tax 

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.  Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that 
it relates to items recognised directly in reserves.  In this case, the tax is also recognised in equity. 

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the 
country where the group operates and generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with 
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.  It establishes provisions where appropriate on the 
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 

Deferred tax 

In accordance with IAS 12 Income tax, full provision is made for tax assets and liabilities arising from timing differences between 
recognition of gains and losses in the financial statements and their recognition in the tax computation. 

Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which timing differences are expected to 
reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date.  Deferred tax is measured 
on a non discounted basis. 

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.  However, deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither 
accounting, nor taxable surplus or deficit.  Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially 
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax 
liability is settled.  Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where 
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not 
reverse in the foreseeable future.  Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable surpluses 
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. 

Value Added Tax 

Most of the activities of the group are outside the scope of Value Added Tax (VAT) and, in general, output tax does not apply and input 
tax on purchases is not recoverable.  Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised 
purchase cost of fixed assets.  Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT. 
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Note 1 (cont’d) 

(k) Employee benefits 

(a) Pension Obligations 

Employees of the company are members of one of two pension schemes, highlighted below. Both schemes are defined benefit pension 
schemes providing benefits on a career average revalued earnings basis: 

• Strathclyde Pension Fund 
• Highland Pension Fund 
 
The Schemes are accounted for on a defined benefit basis under IAS 19 Employee Benefits.  Assets and liabilities of the schemes are held 
separately from those of the group.  The schemes’ assets are measured using market values and the schemes’ liabilities are measured using 
a projected unit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency 
to the liability.  Contributions to these schemes are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees’ working lives with 
the group.  The contributions are determined by an actuary on the basis of triennial valuations using the Age Attained Method.  The 
actuaries also review the progress of the schemes in each of the intervening years.  Variations from regular cost are spread over the 
expected average remaining working lifetime of members of the schemes after making allowances for future withdrawals.   
 
The expected cost of providing staff pensions to employees contributing to the schemes is recognised in the income statement on a 
systematic basis over the expected average remaining lives of members of the funds in accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits and 
recognises retirement benefits as the benefits are earned and not when they are due to be paid.  The income statement also includes the 
net impact of returns on the schemes’ assets and interest on the schemes’ liabilities, which is disclosed as other finance income.  A pension 
scheme asset is recognised on the balance sheet only to the extent the surplus may be recovered by reduced further contributions or to 
the extent that the trustees have agreed a refund from the scheme at the balance sheet date.  A pension scheme liability is recognised to 
the extent that the group has a legal or constructive obligation to settle the liability. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in the statement of comprehensive income in the 
period in which they arise. 

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income and expenditure, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional on the 
employees remaining in service for a specified period of time (the vesting period). In this case, the past-service costs are amortised on a 
straight-line basis over the vesting period. 

(b) Termination benefits 

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the group before the normal retirement date, or whenever an 
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The group recognises termination benefits when it is 
demonstrably committed to either: terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without 
possibility of withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits 
falling due more than 12 months after year end are discounted to their present value. 

(l) Provisions 

The group recognises provisions when: the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable 
that an outflow of resource will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.  Provisions are not 
recognised for future operating losses.   
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering 
the class of obligations as a whole.   

A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may 
be small.  Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using the 
discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury. 

(m) Dilapidations 

Provision for the costs of dilapidations on the expiry of premises leases, which are of uncertain timing or amount at the balance sheet 
date, are provided on the basis of the best estimate using independent professional assessments.  
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Note 1 (cont’d) 

(n) Revenue 

a) Grant-in-aid 
Grant-in-aid from the Scottish Government is recognised on the basis of cash received during the year.  This treatment is defined by the 
funding agreement with the Scottish Government, which does not allow unused funding to be carried forward into future financial years.   

b) European income 

European income is recognised on the basis of amounts receivable in respect of expenditure incurred in the accounting period on 
approved activities. 

c) Sales of services 

The group sells careers and learning provision services and IT services to other public sector organisations. These services are provided 
on a time and material basis. Contract terms are generally less than one year. 
Revenue from time and material contracts is recognised on a cost recovery basis.  Revenue is recognised upon satisfaction of performance 
obligations.  For time contracts, revenue is measured on the basis of labour hours delivered.  For material contracts, revenue is measured 
on the basis of direct expenses incurred. 

If circumstances arise that may change the original estimates of revenues, costs or extent of performance obligations satisfied, estimates 
are revised. These revisions may result in increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs and are reflected in income in the period 
in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management. 

Sales of services are recognised as income in the period to which they relate.   

Revenue is stated net of VAT where applicable. 

d) Interest income 

Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis. 

(o) Cost of Sales 

Cost of sales represents the expenditure incurred in providing outsourced IT services and in providing specific education and lifelong 
learning services as defined in the group’s objectives as set by the Scottish Ministers.  These are the costs of generating invoiced 
income.  Cost of sales are reported in the period to which they relate and are stated net of recoverable VAT.   

(p) Operating Expenditure 

Operating expenditure represents the costs of national training programmes and the related staff costs of administering these 
programmes.  Operating expenditure is reported in the period to which it relates and is stated net of recoverable VAT. 

(q) Administrative Expenses 

Administrative expenses are the costs of running the group, rather than the provision of services.  These costs include central support 
functions, governance, administration costs and the related staff costs.  Administrative expenses are reported in the period to which they 
relate and are stated net of recoverable VAT. 

(r) Leases 
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. 
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the benefits 
received.  Leasehold improvements are expensed in the year and are not capitalised. 

(s) Newly Adopted IFRS 

In these financial statements, there are no adopted IFRSs which are effective for the first time which have had a material effect on the 
financial statements therefore there has been no restatement of comparatives. 
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Note 1 (cont’d) 

(t) Accounting standards issued not yet adopted 
The following Adopted IFRSs have been issued but have not been applied in these financial statements: 

• IFRS 16 Leases 
The FReM, issued by HM Treasury, interprets and adapts IFRS 16 for the public sector context in several ways. IFRS 16, as 
adapted and interpreted by the FReM, was to be effective from 1 April 2020, however, in light of Covid-19 pressures, HM 
Treasury and the Financial Reporting Advisory Board (FRAB) have decided that IFRS 16 implementation will be deferred until 
1 April 2021.  While the impact on the financial statements has yet to be fully determined, lease obligations (£6.6 million at 31 
March 2020, as disclosed in Note 12) will be recognised as right of use assets at 1 April 2021. 

• IFRS 17 Insurance contracts 
Adoption is not expected to have a material effect on the group’s financial statements. 

 
Note 2 
 
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS  
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of 
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

The group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal 
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below. 
 
a) Pensions 

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number 
of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost/(income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these 
assumptions will impact the carrying amount of pension obligations. 
 
The group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be used to determine the 
present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the pension obligations. In determining the appropriate 
discount rate, the group considers the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the 
benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability. 

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market conditions.  Additional information is disclosed in 
Note 7. 
 
b) European Social Funding 

The Group participates in a number of operations which attract financial support from the European Union.  Funding is claimed in 
arrears at the intervention rate agreed at the start of each operation and is based upon the costs incurred to deliver the operational 
outcomes of the Strategic Intervention.  Income is recognised to the extent eligible costs have been defrayed during the financial year 
and for which the group is satisfied appropriate evidence is available to make a claim for European funding in the future.  Acknowledging 
income accrued in the financial statements is subject to verification by the auditing Managing Authority before settlement, a provision is 
recognised for an estimated expected credit loss based on past incidence of ineligible spend within previously verified claims.  Having 
considered a range of data, methods and assumptions, the Group is satisfied the income accrued and the provision for a loss allowance 
has been estimated using the best available information.  Additional information is disclosed in Note 5. 
 
Note 3 
 
SEGMENTAL REPORTING 
 
Group 
Management has considered the operating segment of the group based on the reports reviewed by the Chief Executive and the Board 
that are used to make strategic decisions.  Based on this information used internally, management believe the group has one reportable 
operating segment. 
 
All income and expenditure is attributable to the principal activity of the group and relates to the provision of National Training 
Programmes, careers and learning provision services.  The Chief Executive and the Board monitor expenditure by strategic theme.  
Revenue, Cost of Sales and finance income and expenditure are not monitored by strategic theme.  An analysis of expenditure by strategic 
theme is given in Note 14.  
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Note 4 
 
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT – GROUP AND COMPANY 
 

          
     Computer 

Equipment 
 Fixtures & 

Fittings 
  

Total 
     £’000  £’000  £’000 
          
Cost:          
At 1 April 2019     -  -  - 
Additions     356  912  1,268 
          
At 31 March 2020     356  912  1,268 
          
          
Depreciation          
At 1 April 2019     -  -  - 
Provided during the year     42  82  124 
          
At 31 March 2020     42  82  124 
          
          
Net Book Value          
          
At 31 March 2020     314  830  1,144 
          
At 31 March 2019     -  -  - 
           
          

As at 31 March 2020, the group had no capital commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment. 
 
 
Note 5 
 
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

 Group  Group  Company  Company 
 2020  2019  2020  2019 
 £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
Amounts falling due within one year        
Trade receivables 2,393  5,046  2,393  5,046 
Provision for doubtful debts (10)  -  (10)  - 
Provision for expected credit losses (343)  (60)  (343)  (60) 
 2,040  4,986  2,040  4,986 
Other receivables 39  30  39  609 
Accrued income 41,639  20,834  41,639  20,834 
Prepayments  7,384  5,918  7,384  5,918 
 51,102  31,768  51,102  32,347 

 
Included within Trade and Other Receivables are balances due from other public sector organisations as follows:  
 

 Group  Group  Company  Company 
 2020  2019  2020  2019 
 £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
Amounts falling due within one year        
Central government bodies 43,716  25,736  43,716  25,736 
Local authorities 56  92  56  92 
Public corporations 1  77  1  77 
Bodies external to government 7,329  5,863  7,329  6,442 
 51,102  31,768  51,102  32,347 
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Note 5 (cont’d) 
 
As at 31 March 2020 the group and company had trade receivables with a carrying value of £40,637 (2019: £438,868) that were past their 
due date but not impaired.  The ageing of trade receivables which are past their due date but not impaired is as follows: 
 

GROUP AND COMPANY    
 2020  2019 

 £’000  £’000 

    
Up to 3 months past due 40  429 

3 to 6 months past due 1  - 

Over six months past due -  10 

 41  439 

 
The trade receivables which are past due and not impaired primarily relate to balances due from public sector organisations and there is 
no history of default from these customers recently. 
 
Included within accrued income is European funding of £41.4 million (2019: £20.5 million).  Acknowledging claims for European 
funding are subject to verification by the auditing Managing Authority prior to settlement, a loss allowance of £298,177 (2019: £nil) for 
potential ineligible expenditure is recognised within the provision for expected credit losses based on past incidence of ineligible spend 
within previously verified claims. 
 
All receivables are denominated in GB pounds.  The carrying amount of short-term receivables approximates their fair value, and the 
effective interest rate on non-current receivables is nil. 
 
 
Note 6 
 
RETAINED LOSSES 

            
     Group  Group  Company  Company 
     2020  2019  2020  2019 
     £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
            
At 1 April 2019     (75,319)  (34,062)  (80,403)  (39,110) 
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year     37,814  (41,257)  37,814  (41,293) 
Transfer of WBL Scotland assets     -  -  5,084  - 
At 31 March 2020     (37,505)  (75,319)  (37,505)  (80,403) 

 
 
Note 7 
 
RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS 
 
The company participated in the following Local Government Pension Schemes (LGPS) in the year to 31 March 2020: 
 
- Strathclyde Pension Fund 
- Highland Pension Fund 
 
The Strathclyde Pension Fund is administered by Glasgow City Council and is managed by Strathclyde Pension Fund Office.  The 
Highland Pension Fund is administered by The Highland Council and is managed by the Highland Council Pension Committee.  Both 
funds are administered in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) Regulations 2014 and the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (Governance) (Scotland) Regulations 2015 and the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional 
Provisions and Savings) (Scotland) Regulations 2014. 
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Note 7 (cont’d) 
 
Both schemes are defined benefit schemes and provide benefits on a career average revalued earnings basis.  Contributions during the 
year totalled £12.4 million (2019: £10.6 million), consisting of £11.9 million (2019: £10.1 million), inclusive of deficit repayments totalling 
£nil (2019: £nil), to the Strathclyde Pension Fund and £0.5 million (2019: £0.5 million), inclusive of deficit repayments totalling £0.2 
million (2019: £0.2 million) to the Highland Pension Fund.  Included within trade and other payables (Note 8) are outstanding 
contributions of £nil (2019: £nil) due to the Strathclyde Pension Fund and £nil (2019: £nil) due to the Highland Pension Fund at 31 
March 2020. In 2020-21 total contributions to LGPS are expected to be £13.0 million. 
 
Actuarial valuations for both schemes are prepared, with the last LGPS valuation of both schemes being to 31 March 2017. Details of 
these valuations can be obtained from published reports. 
 
The disclosures below have been prepared on a consolidated basis for the schemes in which the company and group participate.  
Comparatives have been provided where these are available. 
 

 2020  2019 
 £’000  £’000 
    
Present value of funded defined benefit obligations (426,722)  (463,036) 
Fair value of plan assets 367,961  372,842 
 (58,761)  (90,194) 
Present value of unfunded obligations (1,265)  (1,437) 
    
Net liability (60,026)  (91,631) 

 
Movement in present value of defined benefit and unfunded obligations 

 2020  2019 
 £’000  £’000 
    
Opening defined benefit obligation  464,473  398,286 
Current service cost 22,368  18,664 
Past service cost, including loss on curtailment 5,066  73 
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 11,421  10,944 
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from remeasurements (73,737)  38,309 
Contributions by plan participants 3,789  3,532 
Benefits paid (5,393)  (5,335) 
    
At 31 March 427,987  464,473 

 
Movement in fair value of plan assets 

 2020  2019 
 £’000  £’000 
    
Opening fair value of plan assets  372,842  343,149 
Interest income on plan assets 9,078  9,384 
Return on assets excluding amounts included in net interest  (24,852)  11,472 
Contributions by employer 12,429  10,568 
Contributions by plan participants 3,789  3,532 
Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits 68  72 
Benefits paid (5,393)  (5,335) 
    
At 31 March 367,961  372,842 
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Note 7 (cont’d) 
 
Expense recognised in the statement of income  

 2020  2019 
 £’000  £’000 
    
Current service cost 22,368  18,664 
Past service cost, including loss on curtailment 5,066  73 
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 11,421  10,944 
Interest income on plan assets (9,078)  (9,384) 
    
Total 29,777  20,297 

 
The net expense is recognised in the following line items in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income: 
 

 2020  2019 
 £’000  £’000 
    
Operating expenditure 22,606  15,603 
Administrative expenses  4,828  3,134 
Finance cost 2,343  1,560 
    
 29,777  20,297 

 
 
Amount recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income: 

 2020  2019 
 £’000  £’000 
    
Return on assets excluding amounts included in net interest (24,852)  11,472 
Actuarial gain arising from changes in demographic assumptions 17,731  - 
Actuarial gain/(loss) arising from changes in financial assumptions 56,411  (38,231) 
Actuarial loss arising from other experience adjustments (405)  (78) 
    
Total remeasurement recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income  48,885  (26,837) 

 
 
The fair value of the plan assets was as follows: 

 31 March 2020  31 March 2019 
 

Quoted 
in active 

market 

 Not 
quoted 

in active 
market 

 

Total 
value 

 
Quoted 

in active 
market  

Not 
quoted 

in active 
market  

Total 
value 

 £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
            
Equity securities 88,636  212  88,848  90,304  215  90,519 
Debt securities 11,011  -  11,011  11,151  -  11,151 
Private equity -  43,495  43,495  -  43,986  43,986 
Real estate 1,628  31,774  33,402  1,794  32,179  33,973 
Investment funds and unit trusts 120,828  34,372  155,200  122,147  34,810  156,957 
Derivatives 7  -  7  7  -  7 
Cash and cash equivalents 18,587  17,411  35,998  18,616  17,633  36,249 
            
 240,697  127,264  367,961  244,019  128,823  372,842 
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Note 7 (cont’d) 
 
Principal actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages) were applied on a consistent basis across the schemes and at the year-
end were as follows: 

 2020  2019 
 %  % 
    
Discount rate 2.3  2.4 
Future salary increases 3.0  3.7 
Price inflation (RPI) 2.8  3.5 
Future pension increases 1.9  2.5 

 
The discount rate is based on a corporate bond yield curve and reflects the maturity profile of the plan liabilities.  These liabilities are 
assessed as having a weighted average duration of between 17 years and 23 years at 31 March 2020. 
   
In valuing the liabilities arising from retirement benefit obligations at 31 March 2020, mortality assumptions have been made as indicated 
below.  If life expectancy had been changed to assume that all the members of the fund lived for one year longer, the value of the reported 
liabilities at 31 March 2020 would have increased by around 3% to 5%. 
 
The assumptions relating to longevity underlying the retirement benefit obligations at the balance sheet date are based on standard 
actuarial mortality tables and include an allowance for future improvements in longevity.  The longevity assumption as at 31 March 2020 
is based on CMI 2018 future improvements.  This represents a change from the prior year assumption which was based on CMI 2016 
future improvements and which was used for the latest formal funding valuations as at 31 March 2017.  Reflecting recent national 
statistics have shown lower than previously assumed life expectancy improvements, the CMI 2018 model assumes current rates of 
improvements have peaked and will converge to a long term rate of 1.5% p.a. for males and 1.25% p.a. for females, in contrast with the 
CMI 2016 model which assumed convergence to a long term rate of 1.5% for both genders, and is equivalent to expecting a 65-year old 
to live for a number of years as follows: 
 

• Current pensioner aged 65:   20.9 years (male), 23.1 years (female) 
• Future retiree upon reaching 65:  22.8 years (male), 24.7 years (female) 

 
It is estimated the change in mortality assumption has reduced the value of the reported liabilities as at 31 March 2020 by around 3% to 
4%. 
 
All other demographic assumptions are consistent with those used for the latest formal funding valuation as at 31 March 2017. 
 
History of plans 
 
The history of the plans for the current and prior periods is as follows: 
 

  2020  2019  2018  2017  2016 
Statement of Financial Position  £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
           
Present value of scheme liabilities  (426,722)  (463,036)  (396,938)  (433,341)  (313,198) 
Fair value of scheme assets  367,961  372,842  343,149  320,834  252,814 
Unfunded liabilities  (1,265)  (1,437)  (1,348)  (927)  (827) 
           
Deficit  (60,026)  (91,631)  (55,137)  (113,434)  (61,211) 

 
  2020  2019  2018  2017  2016 
Experience adjustments  £’000/%  £’000/%  £’000/%  £’000/%  £’000/% 
           
Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities 
and as a percentage of scheme liabilities 

 405 
0% 

 78 
0% 

 (27,661) 
(7%) 

 (1,827) 
(0%) 

 (1,828) 
(0%) 

           
Experience adjustment on scheme assets and 
as a percentage of scheme assets 

 (24,852) 
(7%) 

 11,472 
3% 

 5,784 
2% 

 50,007 
16% 

 (1,560) 
(0%) 

           
  ((24,447)  11,550  (21,877)  48,180  (3,388) 

 
  



THE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT SCOTLAND CO. LIMITED                               Company Registration Number: SC202659 
 

    47 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Note 7 (cont’d) 
 
Sensitivity Analysis 

 
Change in assumptions at year ended 31 March 2020: 

Approximate % 
increase to Employer 
Liability 

 Approximate monetary 
amount (£’000) 

    
0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate 12%  53,051 
    
1-year increase in member life expectancy 3% - 5%  12,840 - 21,399 
    
0.5% increase in the Salary Increase Rate 5%  21,237 
    
0.5% increase in the Pension Increase Rate 7%  30,091 

 
 
Note 8 
 
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
 

     Group  Group  Company  Company 
     2020  2019  2020  2019 
     £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
Amounts falling due within one year            
Trade payables     2,804  8,001  2,804  8,001 
Social security and other taxes     382  267  382  267 
Accruals and deferred income     15,113  8,277  15,113  8,270 
Advance from Scottish Government     19,000  -  19,000  - 
     37,299  16,545  37,299  16,538 

 
Included within trade and other payables are balances due to other public sector organisations as follows:  
 

 Group  Group  Company  Company 
 2020  2019  2020  2019 
 £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
Amounts falling due within one year        
Central government bodies 22,719  3,668  22,719  3,668 
Local authorities 3,022  1,652  3,022  1,652 
Public corporations 8  2  8  2 
Bodies external to government 11,550  11,223  11,550  11,216 
 37,299  16,545  37,299  16,538 

 
Due to suspension of European Social Funding in 2019-20 the Scottish Government provided advance funding of £19.0m to the 
company to support the continued delivery of national training programmes.  The funding is provided on a short term basis and repayable 
upon receipt of the European funding.  Included within accrued income is European funding of £41.4 million (2019: £20.5 million). 
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Note 9 
 
TAX EXPENSE 

 2020  2019 
 £’000  £’000 
Analysis of tax charge in the period:    
    
UK Corporation Tax:    
Current tax on income for the period 29  21 
Adjustment in respect of prior periods (-)  (1) 
    
Total Current Tax 29  20 
    
Deferred Tax: -  - 
    
    
 
Tax on Surplus on Ordinary Activities 

29  20 

    
The tax assessed for the period is the standard rate applying in the UK of 19%.    

 
Factors affecting tax charge for the period:    
    
Current Tax Reconciliation    
Deficit on ordinary activities before tax (11,042)      (14,400) 
Current tax @ 19% (2,098)  (2,736) 
    
Effects of:    
Non-taxable income and disallowable expenditure 2,127  2,715 
Tax deducted at source (-)  (-) 
    
Current tax charge 29  21 
    
Balance Sheet Note – Group and Company    
Corporation tax payable 29  21 
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Note 10 
 
PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES – GROUP AND COMPANY 
 

  
At  

1 Apr 2018 

  
Increase in 

year 

 Released to 
Income & 

Expenditure 

  
 

Utilised  

  
At  

31 Mar 2019 
 £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
          
Dilapidations 1,473  8  -  (58)  1,423 
Training 1,380  1,711  (363)  (1,017)  1,711 
McCloud Judgement -  4,900  -  -  4,900 
 2,853  6,619  (363)  (1,075)  8,034 

 
  

At  
1 Apr 2019 

  
Increase 

in year 

 Released to 
Income & 

Expenditure 

  
 

Utilised  

  
At  

31 Mar 2020 
 £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
          
Dilapidations 1,423  159  (45)  (97)  1,440 
Training 1,711  784  (16)  (1,551)  928 
McCloud Judgement 4,900  -  (4,900)  -  - 
 8,034  943  (4,961)  (1,648))  2,368 

 
The dilapidation provision relates to the costs, over the period of the lease, to return leased premises to their original condition, per the 
lease agreement. 
 
The Training provision relates to the cost of approved training which is expected to have taken place but not claimed at 31 March in two 
targeted training programmes, namely; The Transition Training Fund, which exists to provide funding to assist those affected by 
redundancy from the Oil and Gas sector, and Individual Training Accounts, which provide training opportunities in curriculum areas 
aligned to the Scottish Government’s Labour Market Strategy to individuals actively seeking employment or in low paid work and looking 
to progress. 
 
The McCloud Judgement provision was established following the Court of Appeal’s ruling that the transitional protections built into the 
UK Government’s public sector pension reforms were age discriminatory.   The obligation as it applied to Skills Development Scotland 
through its participation in Local Government Pension Schemes was estimated to be 1.1% of the defined benefit and unfunded liabilities 
that existed at 31 March 2019.  The obligation remains and the allowance for the outcome of the McCloud Judgement is now included 
as a past service cost in the valuation of defined benefit and unfunded liabilities as at 31 March 2020, as disclosed in Note 7. 
 
 
Note 11 
 
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES – GROUP AND COMPANY 
 
The valuation of defined benefit and unfunded liabilities at 31 March 2020, as disclosed in Note 7, does not include an allowance for a 
potential ‘past service cost’ in light of the Lloyds judgement on Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) equalisation.  The ruling requires 
pension schemes, such as LGPS, to equalise the effect of unequal GMPs accrued between May 1990 and April 1997 by virtue of them 
having been paid to scheme members at different ages (65 for men, 60 for women).  In acknowledging no definitive method for 
equalisation has been set, and actuarial advice that the trigger for recognition of the past service cost did not exist in the LGPS at 31 
March 2020, the directors are unable to reliably quantify an associated contingent liability.  
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Note 12 
 
LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

  Within   Between second   After 
  one year  and fifth year  five years 
  £’000  £’000  £’000 
Leasehold Property       
31 March 2020  1,937  3,205  1,427 
31 March 2019  2,178  3,307  1,072 
       

The above relates to obligations in respect of leasehold property leased under operating lease agreements 
 
 
Note 13 
 
REVENUE 

 2020  2019 
 £’000  £’000 
    
Grant-in-aid 220,411  209,343 
European income 21,774  14,028 
Customer contracts 11,843  12,049 
Other income 1,000  1,012 
 255,028  236,432 

 
Included within revenue from customer contracts is revenue from public sector organisations as follows: 
 

  2020  2019 
  £’000  £’000 
     
IT services Central government bodies 10,927  11,809 
     
Other contracts Central government bodies 625  77 
 Local authorities 43  26 
 NHS bodies 1  1 
 Public corporations 3  3 
 Bodies external to government 244  133 
  11,843  12,049 
     

Customer contracts are for less than one year.  Other contracts include revenue from staff secondments and recharge of software licences. 
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Note 14 
 
EXPENDITURE 
 2020  2019 
(a)  Operating Expenditure £’000  £’000 
    
National training programmes  138,406  127,252 
Industry and Employer Engagement 3,427  2,993 
Staff costs supporting operations  73,444  71,574 
 215,277  201,819 

 
(b)  Administrative Expenses    
    
Infrastructure, management & administration 15,589  12,661 
Information, communication & technology/information systems 7,526  10,326 
Staff costs supporting administration  13,645  12,531 
 36,760  35,518 
    
(c)  Included in the above are:    
    
Auditors’ remuneration:    

• Audit of these financial statements  86  86 
• Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries pursuant to legislation -  - 

Depreciation (Note 4) 124  - 
Leasehold property rentals 2,409  2,457 
Directors’ remuneration (Note 15) 931  828 

 
 
Note 15 
 
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE AND NUMBERS 

    
 2020  2019 
 £’000  £’000 
    
Salaries 58,697  55,051 
Severance  747  40 
Social security costs 6,232  5,722 
Apprenticeship levy 280  261 
Other pension costs (Note 7) 22,368  18,664 
Past service cost, including curtailments (Note 7) 5,066  73 
Increase in accrued employee benefits 408  967 
 93,798  80,778 
Car allowances 233  245 
McCloud Judgement provision (Note 10) (4,900)  4,900 
 89,131  85,923 

 
 

Average number of full time equivalent employees    
 2020  2019 
    
Non-executive directors and advisers 13  13 
Executive Board (Chief Executive and senior executive managers) 5  5 
Operational 1,243  1,204 
Administrative 262  239 
 1,523  1,461 
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Note 15 (cont’d) 
 
Directors’ Remuneration                                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
Skills Development Scotland has one registered executive director in satisfaction of the requirements of The Companies Act 2006.  The 
emoluments of this director amounted to £149,461 (2019: £154,524).  Additionally, the employer’s pension contributions in respect of 
this director amounted to £25,748 (2019: £27,389).  Actual pension accrued up to 31 March 2020 for the director is £33,194 per annum 
(2019: £29,823).  This differs from the notional figure calculated in accordance with Section 5.3.21 (d) of HM Government’s Financial 
Reporting Manual and shown on page 20.  There is no fixed cash benefit in this scheme.  
 
The emoluments of the registered non-executive directors amounted to £103,741 (2019: £87,052). 
 
The emoluments of all registered directors amounted to £253,202 (2019: £241,576). 
 
Emoluments, including employer’s pension contributions, of all directors, including senior executive managers, co-opted board members 
and the aforementioned registered directors were as follows: 

    
 2020  2019 
 £’000  £’000 
    
Salary 828  745 
Pension 103  83 
 931  828 

 
Compensation Schemes – Exit Packages 
 
In the year to 31 March 2020, 15 employees, equating to 11.7 full time equivalent employees, committed to leave Skills Development 
Scotland under voluntary severance (2019: two employees, equating to 2.0 full time equivalent employees). 
 

 2019-20  2018-19 

Exit package cost band 

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies 

Number of 
other 

departures 
agreed 

Total number 
of  exit 

packages by 
cost band  

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies 

Number of 
other 

departures 
agreed 

Total number 
of  exit 

packages by 
cost band 

        
< £10,000 - - -  - - - 
£10,000 - £25,000 - 2 2  - - - 
£25,000 - £50,000 - 4 4  - 2 2 
£50,000 - £75,000 - 5 5  - - - 
£75,000 - £100,000 - 3 3  - - - 
£100,000 - £125,000 - 1 1  - - - 
        
Total number of exit packages 
by type - 15 15  - 2 2 
        
 
Total resource cost - £845,327 £845,327  - £80,332 £80,332 
        

 
With the objective of addressing 2020-21 budget pressures and beyond, the company invited applications in early 2020 from employees 
wishing to participate in a limited voluntary severance scheme.  Utilising 2019-20 budget savings and with due regard to SPFM guidance, 
applications were approved on the basis of financial viability, protection of training programmes and continued business delivery.  With 
a payback period of 17 months, applications from 14 employees (equating to 10.7 full time equivalent employees) were approved under 
the terms of the scheme at 31 March 2020 at a total cost of £794,572.  Exit costs, including employer on-costs, have been accounted in 
full in the year the decision of departure was agreed. 
 
There were no compulsory redundancies in the year to 31 March 2020 and no member of staff retired early on health grounds during 
the year. 
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Note 16 
 
FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 

   2020  2019 
  Notes £’000  £’000 
 
Finance costs: 

     

Expected return on pension scheme assets  7 9,078  9,384 
Interest on pension scheme liabilities  7 (11,421)  (10,944) 
   (2,343)  (1,560) 
      
Finance income:      
Interest income on bank deposits   153  146 

 
 
Note 17 
 
ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY 
 
The ultimate controlling party in The Skills Development Scotland Co. Limited is the Scottish Ministers. 
 
 
Note 18 
 
RELATED PARTIES 
 
Skills Development Scotland is an executive non-departmental public body, sponsored by the Scottish Government - Education and 
Skills Directorate which is regarded as a related party.  During the period, Skills Development Scotland has had various material 
transactions with the Scottish Government. 
 
In addition, Skills Development Scotland has had a number of material transactions with other Government departments, central and 
local government bodies and other non-departmental bodies.  During the year, material transactions have taken place with: 

• Scottish Enterprise 
• Highlands and Islands Enterprise 
• South of Scotland Enterprise 
• Scottish Funding Council 
• Department for Work & Pensions 

 
Skills Development Scotland made payments of £4,983 (2019: £6,388) to Scottish TUC, of which G Smith is General Secretary. Total 
outstanding at 31 March 2020 is £nil (2019: £nil). All transactions are conducted at arms length. 
 
Skills Development Scotland made payments of £5,728 (2019: £9,200) to Scottish Qualifications Authority, of which G Smith is a Non 
Executive Director. Total outstanding at 31 March 2020 is £nil (2019: £nil). Sales receipts from Scottish Qualifications Authority 
amounted to £6,000 (2019: £6,000) and the balance outstanding at 31 March 2020 is £nil (2019: £nil).  All transactions are conducted at 
arms length. 
 
Skills Development Scotland made payments of £2,550 (2019: £38,500) to Scottish Council for Development and Industry, of which G 
Smith is a Non Executive Director.  Total outstanding at 31 March 2020 is £nil (2019: £nil). All transactions are conducted at arms 
length. 
 
Skills Development Scotland made payments of £901,312 (2019: £929,998) to Ayrshire College, of which W Mackie is Regional Chair.  
Total outstanding at 31 March 2020 is £nil (2019: £65,991). Sales receipts from Ayrshire College amounted to £3,262 (2019: £2,098) and 
the balance outstanding at 31 March 2020 is £255 (2019: £nil). All transactions are conducted at arms length. 
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Note 18 (cont’d) 
 
Skills Development Scotland made payments of £706,500 (2019: £456,503) to Scottish Enterprise, of which W Mackie is Deputy Chair. 
The balance due at 31 March 2020 is £160,008 (2019: £nil).  Sales receipts from Scottish Enterprise amounted to £12,493,639 (2019: 
£9,754,915) and the balance outstanding at 31 March 2020 is £1,470,963 (2019: £3,852,231). All transactions are conducted at arms 
length. 
 
Skills Development Scotland made payments of £921 (2019: £nil) to the College Development Network of which W Mackie is a Board 
Member  Total outstanding at 31 March 2020 is £nil (2019: £nil). All transactions are conducted at arms length.Skills Development 
Scotland made payments of £12,420 (2019: £2,760) to the Confederation of British Industry, of which T Black is Regional Director.  
Total outstanding at 31 March 2020 is £nil (2019: £nil). All transactions are conducted at arms length. 
 
Skills Development Scotland made payments of £242,537 (2019: £269,540) to CodeClan Ltd, of which N Prentice is a board member.  
Total outstanding at 31 March 2020 is £nil (2019: £1,000). All transactions are conducted at arms length.  
 
Skills Development Scotland made payments of £1,350 (2019: £12,900) to eCom Scotland, of which H Robertson is a director.  Total 
outstanding at 31 March 2020 is £nil (2019: £nil). All transactions are conducted at arms length.  
 
Skills Development Scotland made payments of £3,744 (2019: £nil) to Campbell Dallas, of which D Boyd is a Partner.  Total outstanding 
at 31 March 2020 is £nil (2019: £2,400). All transactions are conducted at arms length.  
 
Skills Development Scotland made payments of £3,246,222 (2019: £1,745,741) to the University of the Highlands and Islands, of which 
P Malik is Governor. The balance due at 31 March 2020 is £8,775 (2019: £941,247).  Sales receipts from the University of the Highlands 
and Islands amounted to £10,518 (2019: £1,074) and the balance outstanding at 31 March 2020 is £4,077 (2019: £5,354). All transactions 
are conducted at arms length. 
 
 
Note 19 
 
SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS 

The principal undertakings in which the parent company’s interest at the year-end is more than 20% are as follows: 
 

 
Subsidiary undertakings 

Country of 
incorporation 

 
Principal activity 

Class and percentage of 
shares held 

    
 
 
Scottish UfI Limited 

 
 
Scotland 

The stimulation of demand for, and 
simplification of access to, lifelong learning for 
individuals and businesses throughout Scotland. 

 
100% of issued ordinary 
share capital 

    
 
WBL Scotland 

 
Scotland 

Provision of careers guidance and information 
to the people of Scotland. 

 
No share capital 

 
The group financial statements consolidate the results of both organisations.  The year-end of both organisations is 31 March. 
 

 Aggregate Results            Result for year 
 2020 2019  2020 2019 
Subsidiary undertakings £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 
      
Scottish UfI Limited - -  - - 
      
WBL Scotland - 5,084  - 34 

 
In line with its Articles of Association, the assets of WBL Scotland were transferred to the parent company upon being dissolved on 19 
November 2019.  The parent company is committed to using all assets transferred from WBL Scotland in accordance with the subsidiary 
undertaking’s former objectives.   
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Note 20 
 
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
Skills Development Scotland has exposure to the following risks from the use of financial instruments: 
 
Liquidity risk 
Credit risk  
Market risk 
 
Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that Skills Development Scotland will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.  The 
organisation’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient liquid funds to meet its liabilities as they fall due.  
Skills Development Scotland’s primary source of funds is the grant-in-aid provision from the Scottish Government. Skills Development 
Scotland has no debt or borrowing facility with any external party. 
 
Liquidity is managed by the use of the annual operating plan process and the monitoring of actual performance against budgets and 
forecasts. 
 
The table below details the contractual maturities of financial liabilities. 
 

 Carrying 
Amount 

Contractual  
Cash flows 

Within one 
year 

After more than 
one year 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Financial liabilities     
Trade and other payables 24,201 24,201 22,761 1,440 
 24,201 24,201 22,761 1,440 

 
Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to Skills Development Scotland if a customer or counter party fails to meet its contractual obligations 
and arises from the trade receivables. 
 
Skills Development Scotland carries out appropriate credit checks on potential customers before significant sales transactions are entered 
into in order to mitigate the credit risk Skills Development Scotland will have from any single counterparty.  The maximum exposure to 
credit risk is represented by the carrying value of each financial asset in the balance sheet. 
 
Skills Development Scotland operates a debt management process including monitoring, escalation procedures and recourse to court 
action to recover monies outstanding.  Provision is made for doubtful receivables upon the age of the debt and experience of collecting 
overdue debts. Cash and cash equivalents are held with banks which are not expected to fail. 
 
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:- 

 
 2020 

Carrying Amount 
2019 

Carrying Amount 
 £’000 £’000 
Financial assets   
Trade and other receivables 43,718 25,850 
Cash and cash equivalents 9,971 9,144 
 53,689 34,994 

 
At 31 March 2020, there was a £353,609 impairment provision in respect of financial assets (2019: £60,009). 
 
Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that market prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices will affect income or the value of 
holdings in financial instruments. 
 
Currency risk 
Skills Development Scotland operates predominately in Scotland and the UK and is therefore considered not to be exposed to currency 
risks.  
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Note 20 (cont’d) 
 
Fair values 
The fair values, together with the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are as follows:- 

 
 2020 

Carrying Amount 
2020 

Fair Value 
2019 

Carrying Amount 
2019 

Fair Value 
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
     
Trade and other receivables 43,718 43,718 

 
25,850 25,850 

 
Cash and cash equivalents 9,971 9,971 9,144 9,144 
Trade and other payables (24,201) (24,201) (16,056) (16,056) 
 29,488 29,488 18,938 18,938 
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